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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MARKET REVIEW

In review of 2019, the global economic growth has lost steam, and
was continued to decelerate throughout a number of downside risks.
The tourism and businesses in hotel market were clouded with the
dampening consumer sentiment under the increase of geopolitical
risks and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") — the United
States (the “US") trade tensions uncertainties, as well as unfortunate
terrorist events affecting tourism and hotel businesses in global
markets. The market confidence was generally negatively impacted
by the uncertainties arising from social atmosphere and global
political economy, which were characterised by great complexity and
vicissitude. As concerns with the pressure the economy is under with
the US trade war ongoing, stocks markets have already taken hits.
With the trade war lasting over 500 days and counting, tariffs and
trade tensions are increasingly being priced in as a given in the US-PRC

relationship.

Despite signs of global slowdown, with a challenging operating
environment as the pressures posed by the US trade negotiation and
other internal headwinds, the PRC adopted a series of positive fiscal
policies from the beginning of the 2019 to strengthen counter-cyclical
adjustment. Judging from that, the execution of these policies
went well and the PRC managed steady growth in 2019 with the
expectation of gross domestic product (“GDP") between 6.0% to
6.5%. The PRC's GDP finally averaged 6.1% in 2019, reflecting a
decrease of about 0.6% as compared to 2018, the lowest figure since
records began in 1992. In the meanwhile, Hong Kong was struggling
under the ongoing demonstrations on anti-extradition bill protests,
which was led to the steep crash in visitors arrivals from Mainland
China in 2019. Major exhibitions, conferences and events have been
cancelled or postponed. As many as 40 countries and jurisdictions
have issued travel advisories against going to Hong Kong, heaping
further pressure pushed Hong Kong to a technical recession. Hong
Kong's GDP dropped by 1.2% year-on-year in real terms in 2019, after
the growth of 2.9% in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Starting from second half of 2019, tourist arrivals plunged over 40%
in its sharpest decline since 2003 SARS crisis. Total visitors arrivals to
Hong Kong amounted to approximately 55.9 million, representing
an decrease of 14.2% year-on-year, after growing by 11.4% in
2018, which accounting for 78.3% of the total were visitors from
Mainland China, and those visitors from Mainland China also dropped
by 14.2% year-on-year, after rising by 14.8% in 2018. Visitors
from the traditional short haul markets (excluding Mainland China)
dropped by 14.7% year-on-year in 2019. Of the total visitors arrivals,
overnight visitors accounted for approximately 23.7 million, which
was a decrease of 18.8% when compared on a year-on-year basis.
According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the average hotel room
occupancy level for all the surveyed hotels under different categories
in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased
from approximately 91.4% to 79.1%, recorded a fair occupancy
loss. Compared to occupancy, the overall room rate dropped by

approximately 12.4% yearly in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Given a challenging business environment with a slowdown in the
tourist markets, GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING
LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as (the “Group”) had reported weakening business
development with a bit weak performance in respect of its overall
hotel investment during the year under audit. Revenue of the Group
attained Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") 215.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 18.1% as compared
to HK$263.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was a
loss of HK$110.9 million (Year ended 31 December 2018: profit
of HK$0.4 million) which was mainly attributable to gross profit of
HK$62.9 million (Year ended 31 December 2018: gross profit of
HK$106.3 million) and other income and gains of HK$3.9 million (Year
ended 31 December 2018: other losses of HK$6.2 million), offset by
administrative and other operating expenses of HK$117.6 million (Year
ended 31 December 2018: HK$137.6 million); distribution and selling
expenses of HK$1.0 million (Year ended 31 December 2018: HK$1.3
million); finance costs of HK$3.4 million (Year ended 31 December
2018: HK$0.4 million);
equipment of HK$7.4 million (Year ended 31 December 2018: nil);

impairment loss on property, plant and

impairment loss on right-of-use assets of HK$9.2 million (Year ended
31 December 2018: nil);
properties of HK$37.7 million (Year ended 31 December 2018:

loss on fair value changes of investment

HK$26.7 million) and income tax expense of HK$1.4 million (Year

ended 31 December 2018: income tax credit of HK$66.2 million).

The performance of the Group’s hotel operations and securities
trading during the year ended 31 December 2019 under review, the
commentary on the hotel sector and the changes in general market
conditions and the potential impact on their operating performance
and future prospects are contained in the succeeding sections headed

“Business Review” and “Prospects”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a)

(b)

Hotel Investment

The hotel operations comprises the operations of three
"Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels located in Hong Kong,
Guangzhou and Shenyang and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel.
Overall revenue generated from hotel investment decreased by
18.2% to HK$215.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (Year ended 31 December 2018: HK$263.0 million). The
combined average occupancy rate of the Group slightly decreased
by 7.0% to 67.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Year
ended 31 December 2018: 74.8%). If the operational figures of
our hotels are only compared with those of other comparable
hotels in similar categories, their performance will be in line with
market averages. The gross margin was 29.2% or decreased by
11.2% when compared with the corresponding period in 2018
of 40.4%. To combat the competitive environment, the Group
will continue to invest resources to enhancing its market network
and positioning and, in the meantime, will further streamline its

business operations to contain costs efficiently.

Securities Trading

The segment recorded a loss of HK$2.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (Year ended 31 December 2018:
segment loss of HK$9.8 million), mainly representing fair value
loss of investments held for trading, as a result of mark to market

valuations as at the balance sheet date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 23 November 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Subsidiary”) and an independent third party
(the "Purchaser”) entered into a disposal agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”), in relation to the possible disposal of 60% equity
interests in Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Company Limited (the “Target
Company”), a limited liability company established in the PRC and
owned as to 60% by the Subsidiary at a consideration of Renminbi
("“RMB”) 61 million (equivalent to approximately HK$68.5 million)
(the "Consideration”). The Purchaser paid the Subsidiary RMB21
million (equivalent to approximately HK$23.9 million) (the “Deposit”)
upon both parties signed the Disposal Agreement. The Purchaser
and the Subsidiary shall enter into an escrow agreement and open
an escrow account (the “Escrow Account”) within 3 business days
after the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
have approved the Disposal Agreement. The remaining balance of
the Consideration of RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$44.6 million), shall be deposited into the Escrow Account by the
Purchaser within 3 business days upon opening of such account. As
at the date of Disposal Agreement, the Target Company has leased
out certain spaces to tenants. Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement,
the Subsidiary has undertaken not to request the tenants for any
advanced rental for the next year. In the event the Target Company
has received any such advanced rental payment, the amount of
the Consideration payable by the Purchaser to the Subsidiary shall
be reduced accordingly. On 22 May 2019, the Purchaser and the
Subsidiary entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the long
stop date to 10 months from the date of the Disposal Agreement,
with all terms and conditions remain unchanged. Further details were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 26 November
2018, 17 December 2018, 31 December 2018, 18 January 2019, 4
February 2019, 8 March 2019, 4 April 2019, 26 April 2019, 24 May
2019, 21 June 2019, 19 July 2019, 23 August 2019, 20 September
2019, 25 September 2019, 25 October 2019 and 4 November 2019.
The Disposal Agreement was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 10 December 2019

and it was completed on 26 February 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances and
investments held for trading amounted to HK$1,816.3 million (31
December 2018: HK$1,866.8 million). The Group has no borrowings
as at each of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2019 were HK$1,913.7 million and HK$160.6 million (31 December
2018: HK$1,945.0 million and HK$143.0 million), respectively. As a
result, the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was
11.9 (31 December 2018: 13.6). The gearing ratio as at 31 December
2019, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was nil (31 December 2018:

nil).

As at each of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, over 95%
of the Group’s cash and bank balances and investments held for
trading were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, and the balance of approximately 4.2% (31 December 2018:

4.6%) were in Renminbi.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any assets pledged for credit facilities as at

each of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each

of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

REBRENEZERERLT
20195 7R

H‘-EEJEHFFH ’T& *ﬁ

REBEETRMEER
RZE-—NAE+_A=+—8 F5H
MESKBITEBUARBIEESRE R
1,816,300,0008 T (ZZE - NF+ =8
=-+—H :1,866,800,000 7T) ° A& @ H
—NWEF+ZA=Z+—AEKZZE—NF
T-A=t—BHEEE-

REBMRZZT—AF+_A=+—BHEH
BERRBAEF1/1,913,700,0007 7T &
160,600,000 T (ZE—N\F+_A=+—
H :1,945,000,0007% JT % 143,000,000/

) Al AEBR -_Z—NAF+ A
T+ HEOARBLEEAII9(ZZE—NF
+ZBA=+—H:136) R_ZEE—HhF

t-A=+—B AFAMLE (NEEL
BRALDAREABERDZED L) B
T(ZE-N\F+-A=+—0 F)-

RZE-NF+ZA=+—BERZZE—N
FE+_A=+—H XEEBBISKNE D
RRTEGURBEEEREGAE TR
EFHE BRER42% (ZE—-NF+ZA
=1+—HB:4.6%)AIIAARBE -

EEERH
—NF+-A=T-BR-F-N\F

T-A=+— B AREYEEEAEER

AARGEEREHE -

KREE

—NAF+ZASF-BR-ZT-N\F
ToA=Z+—B FEEIBEFTEARA
B



Management Discussion and Analysis
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the Group will actively
consider the use of relevant financial instruments to manage currency

exchange risks in line with our business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not subject
to the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will
continue to monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the
application of relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated

with interest rates.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2019, the Group had 586 employees of which 479
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration
packages were determined in accordance with individual’'s
responsibility, competence and skills, qualifications, experience and
performance as well as market pay-level. Staff benefits include training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and other

competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives and rewards to employees, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme for the eligible participants (including

employees).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economy continues to face an
unprecedentedly challenge while the economic outlook and operating
environment of Hong Kong and the PRC are anticipated to be
notable challenging as we enter 2020. In addition to the US-PRC
trade & political tensions and the ongoing demonstrations on Hong
Kong anti-extradition bill protests, together with the pandemic of
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) mean a triple blow to Hong Kong
and the PRC’s economy. This highly infectious virus, which has led
to a substantial travel restriction and lockdowns across the PRC, and
many countries have drastically reduced or even closed air traffic with
the PRC, will particularly deliver a hard hit to the hotel sector, with
occupancy rates of hotels in some districts dropping severely. As a
dramatic slowdown in travel to Hong Kong, the number of arrivals
in Hong Kong have plummeted by 75% as the first quarter of 2020,
following the government’s suspension of certain services to contain
the COVID-19 pandemic. Considering the slowdown in economic
growth and the threat of COVID-19, the government forecasts Hong

Kong's economy to grow by -1.5% to 0.5% in 2020.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances as the hotel sector
will stay weak, the revenue of the Group will continue to be impacted
during a period when the Group is taking strict precautionary
measures to ensure the health and safety of its employees, and
supporting the steps taken by the government to control the further
spread of COVID-19, some of our hotels in the PRC which have
witnessed significantly lowered occupancies in the first quarter of
2020 amid the lockdowns imposed by the government of the PRC
(the “Central Government”). However, the widespread occurrence
of COVID-19 should not cause long-term damage to our hotel sector
but will inevitably be a short-term impact to our performance and
prospects in the first half of 2020. The Group will attempt to stay
vigilant and be proactive in responding to these extraordinary with our

shareholders about the significance for our operating results.
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Directors’ Profile
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 64, has been the Chairman of the Company
since December 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Yap holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Laws
and has over 30 years’ experience in finance, investment and banking.
He was an executive director of the Company from 2002 to 2011.
Dr. Yap is a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
director of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master Glory”, a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the issued shares of which are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, he is the
chairman, chief executive officer and a director of China Enterprises
Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and an associated
company of Master Glory), the issued shares of which are traded on
the OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States of America. He
is also the executive chairman of Hanwell Holdings Limited and Tat
Seng Packaging Group Ltd., the issued shares of both companies
are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Dr. Yap
was the chairman, chief executive officer and a director of Burcon
NutraScience Corporation, the issued shares of which are listed on the

Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange

in Germany, until he resigned on 15 January 2019.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 56, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since May 2019. He is also the chairman of the corporate
governance committee, a member of the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than 30 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and finance in international accounting firms
and listed companies. Mr. Lai holds a master degree in business
administration. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lai was
previously the group financial controller of the Company and worked
for the Company from March 1998 to April 2015. Mr. Lai had also
been an executive director and the chief executive officer of Qin Jia
Yuan Media Services Company Limited (now known as SMI Culture &
Travel Group Holdings Limited), the issued shares of which are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since June 2012 and
was re-designated as a non-executive director in August 2013 and
up to November 2013. Prior to rejoining the Company, Mr. Lai was a

director of various subsidiaries of a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic, aged 53, has been an executive director
of the Company since August 2019. He has extensive management
experience in the People’s Republic of China. He is currently
the chairman and an executive director of Tech Pro Technology
Development Limited, the issued shares of which had been formerly
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Dong was an executive director of China Development
Corporation Limited (now known as Success Universe Group Limited),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, from 3
January 2001 to 29 October 2001. Mr. Dong was also the chairman
and an executive director of Premium Land Limited (now known as
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange, from 26 October 2001 to 8
November 2006. In addition, from 2002 to 2004, Mr. Dong was a
member of the Standing Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, which functions as an effective communication
channel between listed companies and regulatory authorities in Hong

Kong.
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Directors’ Profile
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny, aged 60, has been an executive
director of the Company since September 2019. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong. He has
extensive exposure in the financial and investment fields for over 30
years and is well experienced in the international investment market.
He is currently an executive director of China Information Technology
Development Limited (“China Information Technology”), the issued
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (”Stock Exchange”). He is an independent non-executive
director of Far East Holdings International Limited and a non-executive
director of TFG International Group Limited, the issued shares of both
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development Limited,
the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Wong was the chairman and the chief executive officer of China
Information Technology from 20 October 2015 to 24 November 2019.
He was an executive director of TFG International Group Limited
from 21 August 2015 to 1 February 2019 and was re-designated
as a non-executive director on 1 February 2019. Mr. Wong was an
executive director of Larry Jewelry International Company Limited
from 3 October 2016 to 9 October 2019 and Huiyin Holdings Group
Limited (formerly known as Share Economy Group Limited) from 8
May 2017 to 10 April 2019, and a non-executive director of InvesTech
Holdings Limited from 24 September 2015 to 1 June 2017 and Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (now known as
Shi Shi Services Limited) from 19 October 2015 to 18 January 2017,
the issued shares of all companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He was also an executive director and the managing director of See
Corporation Limited (now known as Emperor Culture Group Limited),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, from 21
December 2009 to 28 January 2015. In addition, Mr. Wong was a
former executive director of SMI Holdings Group Limited, the issued

shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 71, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since December 2002. He is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee, and a member of
the audit committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of
business administration system. He has over 37 years’ experience
in the insurance and investment business, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited
("Master Glory”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is
also an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group
Limited (“ITC Properties”). The issued shares of Master Glory and ITC

Properties are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 58, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since March 2007. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and the nomination committee,
and a member of the remuneration committee and the corporate
governance committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in
Business Administration. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of Master Glory
Group Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which

are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Profile
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2008. He is also a member
of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Sin has over 23 years’
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries
and in the banking field. He is an independent non-executive director
of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master Glory”), the issued shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also an independent
director of China Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and an associated company of Master Glory), the issued
shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the

United States of America.
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Senior Management's Profile

Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 48, has been the Financial Controller
of the Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive
accounting experience through management roles for a variety of
public and private multinational corporations. Mr. Lau is a member
of CPA Australia and a certificate holder of American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 52, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom. She has extensive experience

in company secretarial practice.
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Corporate Governance Report
TXRERME

INTRODUCTION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
("Company”) is committed to achieving and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance which is crucial to the development
of the Company and can safeguard the interests of its shareholders
("Shareholders”). The board of directors of the Company (“Board”
and “Directors” respectively) has adopted various policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In
the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2019
("Year"), except for code provision A.4.1. with considered reason(s)

explained below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is principally engaged in the sector of hotel investment
in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The
Company’s corporate objective is to create and enhance value for
Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, the business
strategies of the Company are to maintain the long term growth and
the profitability of the Company. Coupled with the government of
the PRC unveiling the development plan for the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA) being highlighted in its 13th
Five Year Plan, the Directors see that our main operations continue
to stay within the core engine of the development in the region. The
Company is committed to maintaining a solid and healthy financial
status with a solid cash balance and an efficient debt/equity ratio
that will enable the Company to finance the existing operations and

proceed with potential investments.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including four executive
Directors (”Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) whose biographical details are set out in the

“Directors’ Profile” on pages 10 to 14 of this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to Shareholders and responsible
for the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) including formulating strategies, establishing
strategic directions, overseeing the Group’s businesses and systems
of risk management and internal controls, monitoring operating and
financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive
Directors led by the Managing Director. Daily operations and

administration are delegated to the management.

In addition, the Board has established the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s

affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group, and review and approve the
Group’s annual and interim results and other matters which need to
be dealt with. Additional board meetings will be held as and when
required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by all Directors in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to Bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws").

During the Year, nine full Board meetings (including four regular
Board meetings) were held and two sets of resolution(s) in writing of

all Directors were passed.
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TEERWE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the

Board and the general meetings of the Company held during the Year

is set out as follows:

EEE#W
EEEGRENAEENETNLBESE
SERADTBEAG T HEBROT

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HEBITEERE
Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Directors BEE EEEEE RREFAE RREIXE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman) ERSEL(F/EFE) 4/9 11 0/2
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director) RBTENE (EFRAEHE) 7/9 N/A 2/2
(appointed with effect from 31 May (B=—ZFE—NFHA
2019) =t —HEEZE)
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic EREE 4/4 N/A 2/2
(appointed with effect from (B=—ZF—N%F
12 August 2019) NATZHEEZT)
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEEM T E 2/2 N/A 0/2
(appointed with effect from (B=—ZF—N%F
20 September 2019) NAZ+HEEZE)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRIT 2+ 2/2 0/1 N/A
(retired with effect from the conclusion (R—ZZF—NF
of the annual general meeting held on AH=1THAETARE
30 May 2019) BFXGEREFRT)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis PR B 5T A 4/4 0/1 N/A
(resigned with effect from (BE=—ZF—NF
12 August 2019) NA+=HEFHE)
Independent Non-executive BYHTES
Directors
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva T E 9/9 1/1 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B o A 9/9 1/1 2/2
Mr. Sin Chi Fai MBS AE 9/9 171 0/2

The Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs without the

presence of the Executive Directors during the Year according to code

provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) between

each other.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers

of the Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have a chief executive officer and such duties are performed
by the Managing Director. The roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director are currently held by Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lai
Tsz Wah separately. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of
the Board, and the formulation of strategies and policies of the Group
while the Managing Director is responsible for the operation of the
business, and performance of the Group, and the implementation of
major strategies. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the Managing Director of the Company is clearly established and

set out in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the
corporate governance and/or the latest developments of the Listing
Rules for their reading. Directors were also provided with monthly

updates on the Group’s business and financial matters.

From time to time, the Company Secretary circulates details of
training courses which may be of interests to Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to attend the relevant training courses and seminars

organised by professional bodies at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, the current
Directors (namely, Dr. Yap, Allan, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, Mr. Dong Bo,
Frederic, Mr. Wong Kui Sing, Danny, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon
Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Sin Chi Fai) participated in continuous
professional development during the Year by reading materials

provided by the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current INEDs were not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those prescribed by code provision A.4.1, and therefore does not

intend to take any steps in this regard at the moment.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 27 March 2020, the nomination committee of the Company
held a meeting to assess the independence of INEDs. Taking into
account the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, the nomination committee considered that all INEDs remained

independent.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with the

required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG

Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship
with the external auditor; (ii) to assist the Board to review the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’'s
accounting and financial reporting function); and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of the external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1

reviewed the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2019, and make

recommendations to the Board;

approved the engagement letters of external auditor for the

audit of the 2018 annual results;

considered and made recommendation to the Board on the

re-appointment of external auditor at the 2019 AGM;

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group; and

approved the engagement letter of external auditor for the

review of 2019 interim results.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit

Committee held during the Year is as follows:

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

EHMBRERERE  BREE_ZT N
FT+ZA=+—HILFEZE2FEER
BE_Z-NAFRA=TRIERNEAZ
THIRGE YMEESREEER

HEINBZBMABEZ T \F2F
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FRE LEBINEZERE

WA AR B e R K AR R B E
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HEESNEZ BB — T — N FHH
REZBEE-

BEZRZEEKNERNAFERNBITHNSHZ
HEERAT

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Audit Committee ERZEEERE HiEBITEBRRE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B S A 3/3
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L kE 2/3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEELE 3/3

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2019



Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line
with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely,
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, and one Executive Director, namely,
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i)
to consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; (i) to review and determine the remuneration
and compensation packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management; and (iii) to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held four meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the new

executive Directors;

(2) reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the

senior management for 2019;

(3) reviewed and approved the proposed level of salary increase of

employees, including the senior management, for 2020; and

(4) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the

remuneration of INEDs for 2020.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee passed one set of resolutions
in writing during the Year regarding the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Managing Director and the senior management for
2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) FMEEE W
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the KHMEESKENAEERBRTNEHZ
Remuneration Committee held during the Year is set out below: HEERIAT !
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Members of Remuneration Committee FHEZESERE HE T BITEERE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva M EE 4/4
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert o B B A A 4/4
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah RFERYE
(appointed with effect from 31 May 2019) (B=—ZF—NFRA=Z+—HEEZT) 3/3
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRI 20+
(ceased with effect from the conclusion of the (R-ZZF—NFAA=1+HRTHRFE
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019) FFXSERETHIET) 11

Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and

responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions.

During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his or her own

remuneration.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the

Year is within the following bands:

EEZZHFMORBRESENRARRZBE
K BATHAMEE

RAFER BEEF2ERTERAAZH
[

EERAFEZHEFBRANANFREEE
R ML

BREBABRAFEZHMENTHER

Number of Senior

Management

EREBEAEHE

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T %2 1,500,000 7T 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG

Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and one Executive Director,

namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the
Board at least annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as
defined below) and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the corporate strategy of the Company;
(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board having due regard to the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) to assess
the independence of INEDs; (iv) to review regularly the time required
from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;
and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
(vi) to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives, if any, that the Board has set for achieving
diversity on the Board, as well as assess the progress on achieving the
objectives; and (vii) to review the Board Nomination Policy (as defined

below), as appropriate.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held five meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(2) considered and made recommendations to the Board on the

re-election of retiring Directors at the 2019 AGM;

(3) reviewed the nominations of Directors and recommended their

appointments to the Board for approval;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (conTINUED)

(4) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in

light of the Board Diversity Policy; and

(5) reviewed the time required from a Director to perform his/her

responsibilities to the Company.

In addition, the Nomination Committee passed one set of resolutions
in writing during the Year regarding the recommendation to the Board
on the re-election of Directors who hold office until the special general

meeting held on 10 December 2019.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Nomination Committee held during the Year is as follows:

REZEE )
) BESSEEZ T RERIEEeR
B ABIRAR &

(B) BMANEBEERMARAEITHEBEMSE R
A EE R o

N REZEENRAFERNRE—NEE
REB ABREERERE_FT-NAF+_A
TEETZBRFIAGERLENESTERE
ET—FRAEFTSROEZ -

EREZEEKNENAFERNBITHNS H
HEBERAT

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Nomination Committee REZEEHE HEBITEERE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B o A 5/5
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L EE 5/5
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BFELE

(appointed with effect from 31 May 2019) (B=ZF—NFRA=+—HEEZ) 3/3
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva PRI+

(ceased with effect from the conclusion of the (R=—ZFE—NEFRAA=1H

annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019) BITHIIRFE B F A &4 R T HIEF) 2/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognises the importance of diversity in relation to its
business, and has adopted the Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to guide the Board in achieving its diversity in terms of
gender, age, educational background, skills, knowledge, professional
experience and length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness

of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the

Board Diversity Policy when recommending candidates to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits

of diversity each candidate can bring to the overall Board composition.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of

diversity, including but not limited to, those described above.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness, and recommend any required

revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and taken into account
the existing composition of the Board and the business nature of the
Group, the Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Board
has not set any measurable objectives for implementing the Board

Diversity Policy.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates

for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship or for

proposed re-appointment of a Director:
(@) integrity;
(b) qualifications including skills, knowledge and professional

experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and

corporate strategy;

(c) commitment to devote sufficient time in carrying out duties as
a Director;
(d) Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted

by the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;

(e) for a proposed appointment of an INED, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the

independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

(f) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the

number of years he has already served; and

(9) potential/actual conflict of interest that may create.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The

Nomination Committee may consider such other factors that may

enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of a new Director made by any Board members and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the nomination criteria set out above and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval.
The Board will decide the appointment based on the recommendation

of the Nomination Committee.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall service to the Company of the retiring Director
who wishes to stand for re-election at the general meeting, including
the attendance of Board and Board committee meetings, and the level
of participation and performance on the Board during his/her term.
The Nomination Committee will also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the nomination criteria set
out above. The Nomination Committee will make recommendation
to the Board and the Board will then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the

general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference

in line with the CG Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee).

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) to review the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two

meetings and performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the Company’s practices on corporate governance
and the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;

(2) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and disclosures in the Corporate Governance

Report and the interim report; and

(3) reviewed the training and continuous professional development

of Directors.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Corporate Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Corporate Governance Committee T¥ETFRZEEHE HEBITEBRE
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BFELEE 1”1
(appointed with effect from 31 May 2019) (B—ZFE—NFRA=1—HEEZ(T)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B 0 A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PRI A 2/2
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRI X+
(ceased with effect from the conclusion of the (R-ZF—NFAA=1H
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019) ER7T 7Y% B F A @4 KA T B E(E) 11
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows for such financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial

statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the Year, the fee payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited
(“Moore Stephens”), the auditor of the Company, for audit services
and non-audit services were approximately HK$2,950,000 (2018:
HK$2,880,000) and HK$1,300,000 (2018: HK$1,100,000) respectively.

The statement of Moore Stephens regarding its reporting
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on

page 57.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the
Group, setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company, the main features including the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budgets as well.
The process includes identification, evaluation, management measures
and control and review. Meetings are held regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems, to
identify any significant management and operational risks as well as

control failings or weaknesses.

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control
audit function to an independent accounting firm covering the review
of key internal controls in selected areas based on key operational,
financial and compliance risks as identified under the risk management
framework and as advised by the Audit Committee and the
management. The independent accounting firm is staffed with persons
with relevant qualifications and experience. They reported directly and
primarily to the Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring
and managing the risks and internal controls of the Group. They
also planned their internal audit schedules in consultation with, but
independently of the management. The Audit Committee reviewed
the activities of the independent accounting firm on a regular basis,
including the overseeing and monitoring of the implementation
improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal controls

within the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in
internal controls and recommendations for areas of improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee. Following the receipt
of such recommendations, the Company has fully implemented
the recommendations to further strengthen the risk management
framework and internal control system during 2019. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that there were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified during the Year
which might affect Shareholders. It concluded that an adequate
and effective internal control system is maintained to safeguard the

Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the internal control audit function and the Audit
Committee considers that the internal control audit function is

adequately resourced.

Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provision (as defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with no fixed dividend
payouts. The actual dividend that the Board may recommend or
declare in respect of any particular financial year or period is subject

to a number of factors and at the discretion of the Board.

The Board will take into account the following factors when

considering the payment of dividends:
(a) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

(o) the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity

and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed

by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future

expansion plans;

(f) general economic conditions, and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company; and

(9) any other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restrictions under

Bermuda laws and the Bye-Laws.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company. During
the Year, the Company Secretary had complied with the relevant

professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out formal channels of communication with

Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’s

website at www.gbadynamic.com.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively
communicate with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the

opportunity of asking questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and

on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external
auditor are available at the annual general meetings of the Company

to answer Shareholders’ questions.

AEBBRHBERERAT

20195 3R

SEEARE

DNEMWE
REABEAARTZ2BES - RAFER
AEREEHA LTRAEI 042 EHE
e ER

HERRZER
ARRAEREBAZEEM - EFHE
SRR BB - SR AR R ER

H

o

B o

i

ARREBIRREERRRFT BB EF
BEMBHRS (PHRFERS) A K

RBEFREREMAELARAZERRE - U
R B R PT 232 2 B S

BERAANEEZ2ERATRA QA S

www.gbadynamic.com& £ °

RAPHERRARERERFEBZARTAR
Wi ER R EAEBEEFELRA -

ARABFBERSERARBRRAGLERE
EERE -WEAGRRLHE  TARKKE
RELFERGLERNE LRE -

EF HEENEETHRAES RIMNEZBENH
HERRRZBERBERS - LEIEBRRER °

| NS

35



Corporate Governance Report
TXRERME

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders may at any time send enquiry(ies) to
the Board in writing by mail to the head office and principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary or by email to

info@gbadynamic.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
registered Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders in accordance with the requirements set out in the

Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws.

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as

requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half (50%) of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in

which meetings are to be convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either (i) any number of registered Shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting of the Company to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not
less than one hundred (100) of such Shareholders, can submit a

requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal
for election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is

intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at

that meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may
consist of one or several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of
the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of resolution or not less than one week
before the general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided
that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general

meeting or circulating the statement for the general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company's expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or the statement will not be circulated for the general

meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company’s website at www.gbadynamic.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’'s Memorandum of

Association and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2019 ("Year”).

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) at the special general meeting held on
10 December 2019 and the approval by the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda, the English name of the Company has been changed
from “Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited” to “GREATER BAY AREA
DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED” and the secondary name of
the Company in Chinese has been changed from “IHEBE/EIZERE
RAR"to "RERRENEERERRA",
December 2019.

both effective from 23

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and
trading of securities. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 36 to the consolidation

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages

68 and 69 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (“Board”) has resolved not to recommend a
final dividend but to recommend a special dividend of HK$2.5 cents
for the Year (2018: nil) to Shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 4 June 2020.

ARREF((EF)ERRERARA AN
Bor(GREIAEEDBEE_FT-NLF+=
AZ+-ALFE(AFED ZHBRERKEE
ZERAMBIREK

ERRAERE

BER-_ZT—NAF+_A+BRTZRE
BFRAAXE EARAIBRR (RR]) BB
BFRARAZR TEARELAFMERR
B ARE 2 HXELTEE H [ Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited ] ¥ 2& & [ GREATER
BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING
LIMITED] » AR A 2R XE —EHEE B30
BHEHEZERARAAIERAINERRE
NEERBERAR] - AZZE—AF+=A
= HRER

FEXRK

ARA/—FEREZRAR -EXTEMBELR
AREAELERBLEE - ARANR-F

—NFT A=t -BENZIENBRARZE
H# e e % mR M E36 -

EERIKE

REEAEE 2 EABRKERFSHE RS
COEZRABEREMEARRR -

EEG([EFG)OAATEZRELRFE
ZARER S - BEFRIRERRIRE T R2.5L
BE(ZZE-N\F  8)TR_ZE_ZFXH
MBEZEARNRREEMAZRE -

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2019



BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group’s business that have occurred since the end of
the financial year 2019 and a discussion on future development in
the Group's business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 2 to 9 respectively of this annual report. Also,
details of financial risks are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. The aforesaid discussions form part of this report

of the Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages from time to
time. The Group achieves this through rational resources utilisation
and compliance with applicable environmental laws and practices of
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions
and employment. The Group continues to improve the environmental
performance as an integral and fundamental part of the business

strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to
be published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company no later than three months after the

publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated
and provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence
of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group’s business where the Group is

operating.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. During the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this report, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its key stakeholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain

good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on

page 194 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds

for believing that:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2019

were approximately HK$1,603.3 million (2018: nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are

set out on pages 195 to 196 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director)

(appointed with effect from 31 May 2019)
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic

(appointed with effect from 12 August 2019)
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny

(appointed with effect from 20 September 2019)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

(retired with effect from the conclusion of

the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

(resigned with effect from 12 August 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws”) and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Poon
Kwok Hing, Albert shall retire from office by rotation at the 2020
annual general meeting of the Company (“2020 AGM") and, being

eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Wong Kui
Shing, Danny, who was appointed by the Board as an executive
Director with effect from 20 September 2019, shall hold office until
the 2020 AGM and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duty of their respective offices or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group

during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition
to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early

termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption
of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit
so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by Shareholders.
Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
not yet exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of

the Company from time to time.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
options available for granting by the Company under the Scheme was
78,921,104, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue

on that date.

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in 12-month

period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of each grant in excess of

HK$5 million;

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

8B IR fE T &
KRBt F A BREZARRARER
BIA® b - SR B it B IR - R
AEREH - AD AR B G E A
5 IR 48 8 7578,921,1040% - (A AR R Bl %
AEIE BATIAD A 10% °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case

will not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of

grant, which must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of

grant.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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EFEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BREE @
Details of the movements of the share options under the Scheme ~ WMANFEER @ ZTEE FHOBRE S8
during the Year were as follows: BT -
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised apsed as at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December Date of price
Eligible participant 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2019 Grant per share Exercise period
HKS
RoB-0E
RZE-1f t28
‘ -f-B  WARER  WARER  WAEER  =1-8 ] ]
RERSRE HAGTE R E HE/&N WA REAE ﬁ&h%@ gL
BT
Directors
Dr. Yap, Allan 7,800,000 - - - 7,800,000 24.42017 0590 24.42017-23.4.2022
EXEEL

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

(retired with effect from the

conclusion of the annual general

meeting held on 30 May 2019) 7,800,000 - - 7,800,000 - 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
(33 Gn

(RZE-NERA=THEH

REBEAELREER)

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis
(resigned with effect from 12

Aqgust 2019) 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 24.42017 0590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
BELEE )

(E=F-NEFT-FE&f)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.42017 0590 24.42017-23.4.2022
PEURE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
REREE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 500,000 - - - 500,000 2442017 0590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
REBLE
Employee(s) 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
8T
Other eligible participants 46,000,000 - - - 46,000,000 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
R ERSHEE
Total 65,600,000 - - 9,800,000 55,800,000
Eh

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

were as follows:

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R

Report of the Directors

EEEWE
B B R S 2 R

B EX BB E | —EHmREEIN  RA
FERN ARREEEMAMERRSERTZ
ERRE BEEEAHLBARRB LM
HiAABEZRD S ESFMER -

ES 2B HERDKRES

BmAKXE

RZB-AF+ZA=+—H EFRER
ASREEMAREE (ExRAEFRBE K
B ([ % R BE &G ]) FXVER) 2B - 48
MRNEESFTHEERBESFLBME KNS
326 BT F 2 ELMATRLEE - HiRE &
MRA SR+ Z EMBETAEFETESR
SEEEFR ([REFR]) BMGEARAR
WPz M BORB IS |



50

Report of the Directors

EFEWE

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EEZ RN -HEBERHONLES
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND ##HZAAXE @)
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying RAEAATROREBROZHE
shares of the Company

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of the

Name of Director of interest shares held shares held Total Company

(Note 1) (Note 2)

RN

gyl ERTREZ

BEEEB 5/ REMEE RO EE BROHE e BABD

(Bizt1) (B17£2)

Dr. Yap, Allan Beneficial owner - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.99%
2L HibEA

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
BEIEE EmBBA

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
& B LS A EmBEA

Mr. Sin Chi Fai Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
REIELE EmfEA

Notes: B EE

1. All Directors’ interests in the underlying shares of the Company were 1. FIBEZEERARFBBEROFES 2 #Ex

in respect of the share options granted by the Company on 24 April HAARAR-_Z—tFONA=-TLHE
2017. Details of the share options are set out under the section oz ERE - BRAEREFIBEN L
headed “Share Option Scheme” above. IRAERT &l —&F o

2. Based on 789,211,046 issued shares of the Company as at 31 2. BREBEAQRTAR-_FT-NF+=_A=+—H
December 2019. ZEBITRINEE789,211,046/% 5 5 o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the B EXEEEHEN R_ZT—-NAF+ A
Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying ~ =+—H - ${#8E E R AN 2A 7] 2 H (F 1] A5 B
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated JEE (F& R #FH KHEEHEXVE) 2 B’
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded D HEEARGOKESTRETMERIOKAE
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as  FRERRIRIE FFH M A E 160 8352168 7
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant  F2 &L fA - KB BEFEEFRIZEAMEARA
to the Model Code. A R B A2 P o

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during
the Year or existed at the end of the Year except for the share options
as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any transactions,
which constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2019, interests of the Directors, other than
independent non-executive Directors, in competing businesses required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

R B 8 175 i

R b3 T8 R M 5T ) | — 55 T 5% B 0 6 A
Gh AR RV AR BT PO SR B A4 A R
9840 5T ST U A0 AR S8 90 1538 ©

BERXS

RAERER AEEBERTIETRS -
T E R BRI LR E AT BB
%5

EENERFENRB RS

RZF-NF+-_A=+—8 RELTR
AIEBI0RATHEESE (BUFNTES
BINBBRFUEERB 2EENT

follows:
Description of
Name of entity businesses of the
which business are entity which are
considered to compete considered to
or likely to compete compete or likely to Nature of interest
Name of with the businesses compete with the of the Director in
Director of the Group businesses of the Group the entity
HEBBRARAELARE 2 ¥H HEBBAAERLAREZ
EREMATRERELES EBRABRFMHR TR
BEExEB BEREE ERFMHcERET ESRZER  ERNE
Dr. Yap, Allan Master Glory Group Limited Trading of securities Chairman and an executive director,
and its subsidiaries and a substantial shareholder
EREEL EEBARA R REMERA EREH FECRITESRFERR

Mr. Wong Kui Shing,

Danny
FIERCSEE

As the Board is independent from the boards of the above mentioned
entities, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently
of, and at arm’s length from the business of those entities.

TFG International Group Limited
and its subsidiaries

BETEREEERARK
HfTE DA

China Information Technology
Development Limited

PEESMRERAERAA

Far East Holdings International Limited

BERERERBRDA

AEBBRHBERERAT

20195 7R

Hotel business in the PRC

R BB EER

Trading of securities

B

=

i

Trading of securities

HHFEE

HE®-

Non-executive director

FRHTES

Executive director

WITES

Independent non-executive director

BUFHTES

HREFEBYUNLLAER2EEE MK
SEEENBUNHEERRAFERELSE
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EFEWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMALTAROG R
MERD 2 EE KX

RZEBE—-hhE+-_A=+—8 BEEZELFK
HEEHIFE3361F AT ETF 2 E LM
BEEUIALTRARE GG RABR D 2 #

smIMORBWT

Long positions in the shares of the Company RERTRGBZHFR
Approximate
percentage
Capacity/ of the issued
Nature Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes of interest shares held the Company
5%/ HEARABE BT
RRERB M EEME FEROBE REAZBNESL
(@)  Master Glory Group Limited ("MGG") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
SEEEFRAAF ([SEEE]) R ERER
Master Glory Group (B.V.1.) Limited ("MGG BVI") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
REEEER
Master Glory Investment Group Limited ("MGIG") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
HJEREEEFRAR ([HERELE]) REEEER
Leaptop Investments Limited (“Leaptop”) 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
REEEER
Asia Will Limited (“AWL") 1 Beneficial owner 148,506,000 18.82%
HEERAR(FE]D ExnEAA
(b)  China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") 2 Interest of controlled 48,660,424 6.17%
corporation
REEEER
Cosmos Regent Ltd. 2 Beneficial owner 43,325,554 5.49%

__ 1}

BalAA

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares of the Company
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) AWL, which held 148,506,000 shares of the Company, was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MGIG. MGIG was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MGG BVI which was in turn wholly-owned by MGG.
Accordingly, Leaptop, MGIG, MGG BVI and MGG were deemed to be
interested in 148,506,000 shares of the Company held by AWL.

(2) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the
Company through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Cosmos Regent Ltd. and Million Good Limited, which held
43,325,554 shares of the Company and 5,334,870 shares of the
Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.

BERENEERERLT
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EFEWE

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2019

interim report are as follows:

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah

The monthly salary of Mr. Lai was revised from HK$130,000 to
HK$140,000 with effect from 1 February 2020. A discretionary bonus
for the Year amounted to HK$130,000 was paid to Mr. Lai in March
2020.

Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic

Mr. Dong is the chairman and an executive director of Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited, the listing of its issued shares on
the Stock Exchange has been cancelled with effect from 9:00 a.m. on

2 March 2020.

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director of Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited, the listing of its issued shares on
the Stock Exchange has been cancelled with effect from 9:00 a.m. on

2 March 2020.

Mr. Wong resigned as an executive director of Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited with effect from 10 October 2019.
He also resigned as the chairman and chief executive officer of China
Information Technology Development Limited with effect from 25

November 2019.

The updated biographical details of the Directors are set out in the

Directors’ Profile on pages 10 to 14 of this annual report.

EEER BT

BHEFTHRAFI35NBNEZHTE A2F
—NFFHREBHPEBTHECEZTER
BEMT

BIERE

FBoEEM A A130,0008 tAEES
140,000t BT _TF _A—Hi4
B ARRIR T _TF=AMBEEL
RFE R BB IEAL A130,0007 7T

)
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s provident fund schemes are set out in note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the applicable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of

the total value of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of

this annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to

approximately HK$11,000 (2018: nil).
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EFEWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 39 of this annual

report.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore Stephens”) will retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2020 AGM. Having
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation,
a resolution for the re-appointment of Moore Stephens as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAP, ALLAN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

- RN

JJ:%E/D
ARABEEERERIFBERHNANFERE6
BEEFIAEZEERRSE -

% BLAm

REFHEESAMEBAERIA([KRES
BEGFMEBMD R T _FFRRE
FAEG LRI ENAERLBMEEMNZE -
REEZGEEERZBGZEARIE K&
RABR-_FT_TFEFRRBFAELER
BERRESHEESAMEBEAREARE R
BIBD 2 RBR -

REEFE

XE
0

& —E-TF=-RA=-++tH

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2019



Independent Auditor’s Report

K| MOORE

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 2375 3828

www.moore.hk

To the Shareholders of
GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
(Formerly known as Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GREATER BAY
AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
68 to 193, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

REBBRZ HEZERERAA

20195 3R

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R EE S

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

B ETEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

B Z B EEF

We identified the impairment assessment of the Group’s
hotel properties, which are included in property, plant
and equipment (note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements) as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance of hotel properties to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgements involved in estimating their recoverable
amounts.

B EEEBEEDEGEADE BBERZEGSE
B R EE15)) ZMEMEZAN SBREESEFE R
AARBEME EGERAVBRABBZEZME - N
FEEDEE Y 2 AT E S B S K 2 HE -

The Group’s hotel properties are located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Group
incurred segment loss of HK$55,543,000 from hotel
operations during the year ended 31 December 2019.
An impairment loss in respect of hotel properties of
HK$6,927,000 were recognised during the year. As at
31 December 2019, the carrying values of the hotel
properties amounted to HK$240,166,000.
EEEBEMEMRPEARKLME (R - MR
BHE_Z-NEFT_A=+—BLLEFE EBEXEBBE
JE T E 4 o #B B 855,543,000/ 7T o AN G E BB 5 )
W ROM (B B 186,927,000 T - R —NFE+ A
=+—H BEY¥ZRHEE 240,166,000/ 7T

AEEBE H BERERAT
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18 M A% BN R

AEETTEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNAHERESF S HETER

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
the recoverable amounts of hotel properties included:

BRAENEREEEBEDETRES BT HZRFEE

understanding management’s process for estimating
the cash flow projections and financial budgets;
BREEEGFREREBARMBEE 28T

evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the
Valuer's scope of work;

bR EM B EREFE MU REEN TFHE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B A2 AR

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

B ETEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties (CONTINUED)
VBT 32 R E A ()

Management reviewed the recoverable amount of each
hotel property at the end of the reporting period by
estimating the value-in-use of these hotel properties
with assistance of an independent qualified valuer (the
“Valuer”) not connected with the Group to determine
the amount of impairment required to write down
these hotel properties to their recoverable amounts.
The value-in-use of the hotel properties are dependent
on certain key inputs including gross profit margin,
future revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates and
discount rates of the hotel properties.

EEEERSELOEMERNRERERE 2B &5E -
FERER BEEEVEME 2B IS ERMGEM
BEED) BB T - et EREWEZEREBE  AEE
L EREMEMRZ AT IRE S EAE CRESRE B
EWMEEREEIARE THREARE  2EEE
MEZEFNE  REBRAERE  SKERERYPRE -

AREETTEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFSF N AHERESFEHETER

evaluating the historical accuracy of the management'’s
assessment of the cash flow projections by comparing
the historical estimates to actual performance in
current year; and
AHMEEREREER S RETARMAIET L 2 EHEIE - 5
ERBEGTTERNFE 2 ERRRFELER &

evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology, the discount rates and terminal growth
rates used; and the reasonableness of the gross profit
margin, future revenue growth rates and terminal
growth rates with reference to the historical financial
data, financial budgets and available industry and
market data.

2EZREFBEE  WREE RAIE1TE R TS5 EE
FIEFAMESE MRERSKEREZETE
RENE  RRPABRERZRERE 2GRN -
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Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

B ETEE

Valuation of investment properties

KREYFRZI1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the judgements involved in determining
the fair value.
BMGREMEZHEZSNSERETEE  REAAR
EMECHEBEGEUBRRERCEEN NMEERE
KREMEZ ATFEET SR HE -

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use located in the PRC. As at
31 December 2019, the carrying value of the Group's
investment properties amounted to HK$90,000,000 and
a decrease in fair value of HK$37,743,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income during the year.
EREKREYMERE —BUNTREERERRZGEAE -
RZE-NF+ZA=1T—H ' BE£EBEREWHEZEER
{8 490,000,000/ 7T = X F A VAR & B K H A 2 H K
BHRPEERAFEEMD37,743,000/8 7T °

All of the Group's investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuation performed by the Valuer using
income capitalisation approach.
EXE2HREMFHRBEEMERRAEROEE
TREEMRAFEETRK-

AEEBE H BERERAT

20195 3R

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

AEETTEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNAHERESF S HETER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuation of investment properties included:

BN EREMEREZAEEZIEFEE

o evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the
Valuer's scope of work;

FHEEEM 2T % - KR IFE M R ER TESHE
EREHE

° reviewing the valuation report issued by the Valuer
and understanding from management and the Valuer
the valuation basis, methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;
EREEMAEL 2 AEREY BRI ERERGERMT
fREEER - TR EAKPTER 2 B RE



Independent Auditor’s Report
R EE S

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED) BREEE (5
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HREE B EMNEFONAHBEARESFBTRETEE

Valuation of investment properties (CONTINUED)
REYFZ15E (B)

Details of the valuation techniques and significant e

inputs used in the valuation are disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation of
investment properties are dependent on certain inputs,
including market rent and capitalisation rate.

HERMREEABZEIZEABBEZHABREEHE

WRMENTHE - REVEZHEBARETBARE -

BETSHSREALE -

evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data
including market rent and capitalisation rate used by
the Valuer; and
FIAEEEIRE AR BEGEMMAERAZm5ES
REREE : |

re-performing market research and analysis to assess
whether the changes in fair value of investment
properties that resulted from the valuation was
reasonable and consistent with the market trends
according to our knowledge.
EETHSMARSMAFNGEHEEEZREYMER
TEEZHSREEREGHEMMMzMSHBE —
B o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

AEEBE H BERERAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R EE S

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EERAEENGEMBHRRA
AENEE

BERAEZRAAERBEEBGMAGHEM
ZABEMBHRELER) REFB(R ARG
BREELHREEENTENGEAMHRE -
WHERBBEREMBHRROEE N FE
BN REF R M E RN B A RRIATH
BN ERZEHIR & -

ERBRaVBREAT BEFHANM &

HSEKERHNEE  URERABERE
REFER KRIFEFTEAENHR EXEBR
HfFILEE  HAEEMEROERTER -

RRERBEEE BEEENUKHRESRRE-

BB BT RSN BEHRRAR
M B

RFWER RHGAMBRAEBET
17 4E B A B o 88 3R 1T 28 B BB K 4 RR R
MG RIRE - WM E FED FEFI0
gl MTHABERMERORBERE -
BULASH - RIS T A BIER A -
R TRARE 2 AR HEAH A L&
FEMREAXREZEAEY - ABRELZD
AERIREE + BT LR BRI (BB BEEA)
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BE BT o BB BR M AT OA P R AF SRS AR 3 48
mMRABREBCMEBREQRRTLYE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

AEEBE H BERERAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R EE S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REMBBETFE M BRREARE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lai Hung Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P06995

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEnkEAEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hE —E-NF
B 5 FHERT FHT
Revenue WA 5
Contracts with customers HERFE4) 167,482 214,138
Leases HE 47,655 48,873
Dividend income g B A 239 -
Total revenue LU 215,376 263,011
Direct operating costs HELEKAR (152,491) (156,713)
Gross profit E5 62,885 106,298
Other income, gains and losses EUg A - Wz R EE 7 3,949 (6,157)
Loss on fair value changes of KREMERNTEBEEZDHH
investment properties 518 17 (37,743) (26,704)
Impairment loss on property, VI - e RBRE 2
plant and equipment VERIEN 15 (7.356) =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEREERE 16 (9.200) =
Distribution and selling expenses D REER S (972) (1,274)
Administrative and other operating TEHEREMEERE
expenses (117,612) (137,552)
Finance costs B & A AN 8 (3,449) (376)
Loss before tax B %5 B 5 48 (109,498) (65,765)
Income tax (expense) credit FTigdi (AxX) EE 9 (1,398) 66,188
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (E8)&=F 10 (110,896) 423
Other comprehensive expense for AEEHMEZEBAX
the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —H & R[gEE R H1E
to profit or loss: By EA
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBRREEZ
translation of foreign operations PEH =58 (12,118) (33,367)
Total comprehensive expense AEEXHBAZEHE
for the year (123,014) (32,944)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

AN

A

= N7

=Kty

REAMEZEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-h#F —E-NF
B 5 FHERT FHT
(Loss) profit for the year BiEAREE (BEB) SFH
attributable to: THAL:
Owners of the Company KRARER A (95,435) (3,785)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (15,461) 4,208
(110,896) 423
Total comprehensive expense for EBhEAFEZEMAXAER
the year attributable to: THAL:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE Z N (106,287) (31,891)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A (16,727) (1,053)
(123,014) (32,944)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic (HK$) ERCET) (0.12) (0.00)
Diluted (HK$) g0 (0.12) (0.00)
REBBRENSERERAA =
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R R

At 31 December 2019 R=—ZE—AEFE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF =T )\F
B 5 TET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W2 - HEE R 15 253,961 296,234
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 33,746 -
Investment properties REMHE 17 90,000 130,000
Deposit e 19 - 19,800
377,707 446,034
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,488 1,536
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b E AR 3K 19 46,000 26,185
Investments held for trading BIEEERE 20 189 7,068
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 21 1,816,076 1,859,781
1,863,753 1,894,570
Assets classified as held for sale DEAREHEEE 22 49,910 50,438
1,913,663 1,945,008
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE - BR 5K 23 71,375 93,336
Tax liabilities MIEBE 9,859 9,873
Lease liabilities HEaRE 24 40,462 =
Contract liabilities EHEE 25 1,883 3,243
123,579 106,452
Liabilities associated with assets EAOEAREHEERE
classified as held for sale EEMARE 22 37,053 36,618
160,632 143,070
Net current assets RBEESRE 1,753,031 1,801,938
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBEE 2,130,738 2,247,972
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEEE 26 30,055 33,041
Lease liabilities HESRE 24 2,691 =
32,746 33,041
Net assets EEFE 2,097,992 2,214,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR RR

At 31 December 2019 R=—ZE—AE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-h%E —2-N\F
Bt 5 FHERT FET
Capital and reserves R R #E

Share capital fi% Zx 27 7,892 7,892
Reserves & 1,915,580 2,016,436

Equity attributable to owners of PN/NCIE PN e
the Company 1,923,472 2,024,328
Non-controlling interests R E R 174,520 190,603
Total equity B 2,097,992 2,214,931

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 193 were  HNFSEINVEZGATKBREECN T -F
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 HF=A-++HESESHERFTRETIZ I

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: HTIIEERRES
YAP, ALLAN LAI TSZ WAH ERE FETE
Executive Director Executive Director HITEH HITEHE
REBBEHEERERAF i
20195 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AeRREZZER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L INGE PN, 1
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Special  Translation payments Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses Total interests Total
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
Ba RftEE  RARE ERfE URRIGE Hfe ZiES & FBRER At
TiEn TR T Tin TEn TR T Tén FiEn TER
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Hrita)) (FriE(t)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-B 7892 1,360,752 658,303 104,918 13,715 (703190 (19,042) 2,056,219 191,656 2,247,875
(Loss) profit for the year ~ AE[E (B18) &7 - - - - - - (378 (378 4,208 43
Other comprehensive AEREM2ERR
expense for the year - - - (28,106) - - - (28,106) (5261)  (33,367)
Total comprehensive FEERERYAE
expense for the year - - - (28,106) - - (3,785 (31,891) (1,053  (32,944)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
TZA=1-A 7892 1,360,752 658,303 76,812 13,715 (70319)  (22.827) 2,024,328 190,603 2,214,931
Adustments (see note 2) 3% (24BN ) - - - - - - 5,431 5,431 644 6,075
At 1 January 2019 (restated) H=F-h&E—F—H
(|E5) 7892 1,360,752 658,303 76,812 13,715 (70319)  (17,396) 2,029,759 191,247 2,221,006
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - - (95435 (95435  (15.461)  (110,89%)
Other comprehensive AEREMZERR
expense for the year - - - (10,852) - - - (10,852) (1,260)  (12,118)
Total comprehensive FEERERYAE
expense for the year - - - (10,852) - - (95435  (106,287)  (16,727)  (123,014)
Lapse of share options BREXK - - - - (2,107) - 2,107 = = =
Reduction in share HRRAEE
premium (note (c) (& (c) - (1360752) 1,360,752 - = = - - = =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+ZR=1-H 7,892 - 2,019,055 65,960 11,608 (70319)  (110,724) 1,923,472 174520 2,097,992
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRREESDE

N

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

Notes:

(a)

Special reserve represents the contributed surplus of the Company
arising from: (i) the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in September 1997; (ii) reduction in share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2008; and (iii)
reduction in share premium in December 2019. The reserve is
available for distribution under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Acquisition of additional interest in an entity that is already controlled
by the Group is accounted for as equity transaction. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interests and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid that are recognised directly in
equity.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 10 December 2019, the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
as at 11 December 2019 was reduced to nil and the credit arising
therefrom was transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

REBRENEZEREBRLT
20195 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Bt 5 FHERT FH&T
Operating activities KEEH
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (F18) = A (110,896) 423
Adjustments for: FHE
Income tax expense (credit) Fﬁ?%f)“ﬁ?ﬂi'i(ﬁ%) 1,398 (66,188)
Depreciation of property, plant M MBRRRBEZTE
and equipment 29,820 36,698
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEECTE 39,506 =
Interest income NS ON (8,621) (3,975)
Finance costs & Bk A 3,449 376
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME HERZEZ
and equipment &8 29 21
Impairment loss VERIEY
— property, plant and equipment — WE  HBERRERE 7,356 =
- right-of-use assets — EREEE 9,200 -
Write-off of trade receivables i SH B 5 FE AR 5K 934 =
Loss on fair value changes of FHIEBEBEREZATER
investments held for trading HE) v e 3,089 9,442
Loss on fair value changes of wREMEZ N FEE
investment properties BE) 2 EE 37,743 26,704
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAZ
movements in working capital KEBRSME 13,007 3,501
Decrease in inventories FERD 68 324
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 I H At fE U BR 3 (38 n)
other receivables R > (301) 31,285
Decrease in investment held for trading BIEEBERERD 3,790 5,312
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 & H Ath FE S BRFR ORL 2>)
other payables 30 (15,904) 3,567
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities SEHaE0RL)E (1,392) 169
Decrease in assets classified as held for sale DB A#FELE 2 EERD 2,356 =
Decrease in liabilities associated with BEAOHARELE ZEE
assets classified as held for sale HENE ERD (302) =
Cash generated from operations REXBRISZRE 1,322 44,158
Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of BffzHhEARLME
China (the “PRC") (MH B ) Hi| (4,281) (6,347)
Net cash (used in) from operating RETE (FTA) e
activities ZREFHE (2,959) 37,811
Investing activities REEH
Interest received SRS 7,623 3,975
Purchases of property, plant and equipment &5 %1% - #28 K& & (476) (543)
Payment for rental deposits R AN (7) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary FULFEME R A2 (fik & 31 - (24,792)
Refund of deposit paid for acquisition BB AR R MIZERK
of a subsidiary 31 - 22,700
Deposit received for disposal of a subsidiary L &M B A & 2 Y EIZ S 22 - 23,906
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  MRREE
plant and equipment Fr 1% %8 - 37
Net cash from investing activities RETHMEZESTE 7,140 25,283

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.r\/\IE:ﬁ/)le’%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-h#F —T—-NF
FET FHET
Financing activities REER
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERE (37,464) =
Interest paid Eﬁ A2 (3,449) (376)
New other borrowings raised ff%/ﬁﬁ@%ﬂﬁ% - 5,767
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMEE - (5,767)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBHFACRESTE (40,913) (376)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERBALEEEBE 2
cash equivalents (Rl &) #8 pn 3 88 (36,732) 62,718
Cash and cash equivalents FYREeRELEEER
at beginning of the year 1,859,960 1,801,383
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes XS o8 (6,126) (4,141)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESREELEEHER
at end of the year 1,817,102 1,859,960
Represented by: Bl -
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 1,816,076 1,859,781
Bank balances classified as held for sale DEAFBELE 2 RITEH 1,026 179
1,817,102 1,859,960

BERENEERERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

GENERAL

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
(the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual

report.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2019 and
approved by the Registrar of Companies of Bermuda on 16
January 2020, the change of the name of the Company from
“Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited” to “GREATER BAY AREA
DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED"” and the change of the
secondary name of the Company in Chinese from “IAREH 545
RBERAR" to "RERELNEEREBRAA]" have become

effective on 23 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the businesses of hotel operation and

trading of securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

—REH
BEBEENEERERART (KA
ADREREEMRIL AEREERA
A ERBDIREBBARDHERA
ALH - ARRZEMBFRREES
$UB 2  NAFRATERARE -

BBERARARAR-_ZE-—NE+_A+HE
TZRFFRAE LRBZFRIIRHER -
WEAREAAZMEERNR - =%
F—ATRBHE  BARRZHXH
7 [Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited |
%A [ GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC
GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED] * 3 #§ 7
RAIZHXE-_ZBH[IAEDEEE
BRERAAIERATRERBEZ NS
TREBRAR] BT —NLE+=A
—t=B&EH-

ARBD—RBREERAF - EX EH
BRARNRELEEEXRBRESEER -

AN
(=)
JC

BB R TIAB T (T8 E)) 251
TRAR R 2N -

o 3F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the

first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R

2.

ERFEI RSB B RBYHKE
BELQ (R HREE
a1

T2 F FE 08 Bl AE R 2 # AT R AR
BAIERUBREER
ARTRENBAT (ARE]) ER
AFEERBA T BELRHALRE
(TEEGHE DR ) B2 H 5] RASHE
BB E R

BREMBREEN HE

165

Bk (BRYBERE AEREENIRER
2BZE®)
— @B

ERMBREER MWEAHEIAEMRA
Eikid 2

BEEE] FHEIERT  BRRBE
F19RZEF]

BEEER REERBARAERAL

gosy By RS
EBUBREEN, ~T-REE-T-+E
] BHELHH
He R FEAE

B R STATIR AN + 3OS 4 B PR BT AT R AR
EEAMBRE LAY AEERALE
ERAEFEEZHERARERR &
REERAMBRRFR 2 RESEL
mEALE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

2.

|

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”, and the related

interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which

already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether

a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related
lease liabilities adjusted by any accrued lease payments by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated

losses and comparative information has not been restated.

FERFE] R I BB E
RELZR ([BBUMKREE
Al ]) @)

R R AT R AE
1537 B 78 B 15 35 4 % Bl ()

B IR EAE 165 [HE

AEERAFEERERBBENERE
RERIE165E - BAMBHS EAE 1657
RARFAGA LS 7R HE] KA
B

HEmE 2

AEECEEGIERREN S HiE
AIEREAEEAR TR RER (B
R BREREBERES)— RB4EE
ZHERERREE BN AHEHENEGH
ERE BN B RELERNF 165 - I &
HEMYARBRNREREENSLER
SEXER) o At AEEL |BHF AR
BREABHAESFENAA

AR T NF—A - BRZIEFTULHK
BRIZEHME  AREEFEHEEHI
SESHER REFBVHREER
FWABHRE  FREENES -

TERATHA

AEBEEYERBEMBRE LS
165 YR _—_F—NF-—A—HAKRRE
RBEMERRFZE -

R-ZB-NF—A—H rXEEZESE
RERHERENSERREIEER
BERERAEEE YERBEEMBHRS
% B1| 2516.C8(b)(ii) 5% 8 5 50~ IR AL
EAHHERAEHEFHRAR - AXER
B Z R Z RN 4 R 5 B 18 g
R AW EBILRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As a lessee (CONTINUED)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under

HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical

expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases

under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to

the respective lease contracts:

BERE
2019$$&

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by
applying HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets” as an alternative of impairment review;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months

of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use

assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a
similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets

in similar economic environment; and
used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date

of initial application in determining the lease term for the

Group's leases with extension and termination options.

FNEERERATF

e IR ERR MR

T-AF+-A=t—BILER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—ZF— N F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

go L

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As a lessee (CONTINUED)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of
initial application. The weighted average incremental borrowing

rate applied is 5.625%.

FERA#HT REIETE BB
WREER ([BEBMBERELE
,JJ) %)

REAFEEBREERZFHITRE
CHENIE 3 R )

BB BEHREERZEI6 [HE

(&)

1ERAMA (B)
REMODBARKEHENHERREE
BER AEEDRERERBHERS
HEEEER ZEEERNE - AEM
Z IR B B E M K R5.625% °

At
1 January
2019
HK$'000
i
Y Wy
-
FHET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZFE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BB 2 R EAGE 80,054
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant REBAEEEEFENECHEAR
incremental borrowings rates 75,579
Less: Practical expedient - leases with B AITIRE S A -HESAN A BN ER B s
lease term ending within 12 months 12EALAAREIE 2 E
from the date of initial application (837)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-—NF—HA-—RAZHEEAE 74,742
Analysed as baRiw=]
Current mE 36,323
Non-current ERB 38,419
74,742

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As a lessee (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at

1 January 2019 comprises the following:

2. BRI REEBTEBYHE

REZER([BEBUBRELE
Al ])

REAFEEBREERZTHITRE
BT E A BREED (&)

BB BHREERZFI65 [HE

(&)
fERAMA (B)

R-Z-NF-—A—R EERAZER
REENREEERENNERE :

Right-of-use
assets
Note HK$'000
EREEE
B 5% FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to RERBEMBRELERNE 165 RFER
operating leases recognised e HEERFREEE
upon application of HKFRS 16 74,742
Adjustment on rental deposit RZZT—NF—A—AZHERSAE (a)
at 1 January 2019 1,833
76,575

(a) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applied under other
receivables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
HK$1,833,000, HK$196,000, HK$23,000 and HK$2,052,000
were adjusted to right-of-use assets, accumulated losses,
non-controlling interests and refundable rental deposits

paid, respectively.

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R

(@ RERBBHMBREEAEI6H
Al AEEHEATRERSH S
BREMERERETESES
HRAFNTRBERCHERET 2 &
FRES - BIBBBMBEREER
FIHENHENRZESE  %F
RewkRBEEEFERERA
AR WE T REELREREE
Wz TR E - Bt 5 RIEER
BEE  RetEiE FERERK
B AREHER S 1EH 1,833,000
7 7T ~ 196,0007% 7T ~ 23,0007 7T
122,052,000/ 7T 2 FHE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H E£ — =&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

—NFFT-HA=t—BLFE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the

Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for

leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases

in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application

and comparative information has not been restated.

(b) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered

into but commence after the date of initial application

relating to the same underlying assets under existing

lease contracts are accounted as if the existing leases are

modified as at 1 January 2019. The application has had no

impact on the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position at 1 January 2019. However, effective 1 January

2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease term after

modification are recognised as income on straight-line basis

over the extended lease term.

(c) Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits

received were considered as rights and obligations under

leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade and other

payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under

HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to

the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect the

discounting effect at transition.

(d) Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS

15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to allocate

consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease

components. The change in allocation basis has had no

material impact on the consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the current year.

|

&M
HE
q 1) (o
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X AKEHARAEESEEAZE
EFHEMERARE  MEREFEY
BHEERNF 1658 BRERAHEA
RERELEHE  BUWESIILERER -

(b) FEABBHBREEDNFE165RE -
REXERBBETLBARRE
- HEBREMEESHIETHERNE
Fﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁfﬁ'éﬂ@%ﬁﬁiﬁ%/—\iﬁ g
BEREEHOR=_FT— L& —H8
*Eﬂzﬂzjj_it)\ﬂﬁ o % FEF ¥ AR
SER=ZZTE—AhEF—A—RAZ&K
AV BRRNREEEE - KT - B
—T-hE—A— B HELERT
HEHEBNEcELCTERAE
HAREREERBBA -

(0 RERBAUBRELENE165H
Al - EH&ﬂLiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁé%&?ﬁ%E\
BEARAEITREREE S K&
Hﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé ATHWHEEENRE
F-REFBHBREELE 165
BTIHENES  ZERELIHE

MERBEEZNR  BTUARE
A B BR 38 B O BRIR 2 &
(d B-ZT—NAF—A—HE Kx&KHE

EEAEBMBHRE EREI155%
fXE@)E'/\%’JZH& 5] AL

RED BEHENMFHEAX
leg/\ o Eag//%mz*k \%L‘TZ’SE.}?\\
AEBZHGAVBRRELBEKX

2/
e o

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EAHIIREEBITEEHB

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REZER([BEBUBRELE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) Al ])

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 16

The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS

16 on accumulated losses at 1 January 2019.

R B 3 A M 38T R AR
BIESHBR

SRR (@)

R T=A

BB BHREERZFI65 [HE

(&)

Y, B2 288 gB
R ERE

HRMBH

By 488
& o

£ A

== A

Notes

o E

BRERE B BHHREERE 160 EL

TREANR -—ZF-NEF-—A—RBEE
IFE 16588 RET IR

Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 16
at 1 January
2019
HK$'000
RaEB

B 7% 3 & 2 Al
E165E R
—ZE-hF
—A—H
-2

FTHET

Accumulated losses

Adjustment on rental deposit
at 1 January 2019

Adjustment on lease accruals

Impact at 1 January 2019

RitEiE
R-ZB-hE-—A-HANHERSHAE

HEEERHAER

R-ZFB-NF-—H-AZFE

(e) Rent-free period (e) fo7HEA
These relate to accrued lease liabilities for lease of properties ZEX

in which the lessor provided rent-free period. The carrying
amount of the lease accruals under trade and other payables
as at 1 January 2019 was adjusted to accumulated losses

(HK$5,627,000) and non-controlling interests (HK$667,000)

at transition.

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R

(a)

196
(5.627)

(5.431)

B AREEHEBANY
ERENENHREEERH N
TE-NF—A—R BZRHEME
RBRRIE T EFHENREER B
BT E R E1E (5,627,000

70) M IEFERE #E s (667,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—ZF— N F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 16

(CONTINUED)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January

2019. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

FERA#HT REIETE BB
WREER ([BEBMBERELE
,JJ) %)

RAFEBRBERZHATRE
BRI ERMB®REER (@)

EEYBEHREERE16% [HE]
(8

B X EH & B IR ERE 165 E £
ZHEHE (&)

MR _E—NhF— A BHREUHBMRR
RERZESFHEIEEATARE - TR A
AXEBFEZIBEE -

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZZ—N\F R=-ZB-hF
+=A — B —BRiE
=4=F ERUBERE
V-t R 551657
K BREE AE HENEREE
Bt 3 FHET FH&T FER
Non-current assets kRBEE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE - 76,575 76,575
Deposit & (a) 19,800 (2,052) 17,748
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b FE S BRFK (e) (93,336) 6,294 (87,042)
Lease liabilities HEAE = (36,323) (36,323)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE = (38,419) (38,419)
Equity Em
Reserves ] (a), (e)  (2,016,436) (5,431) (2,021,867)
Non-controlling interests FE 5 A% 2 (a), (e) (190,603) (644)  (191,247)

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

i ARBMEAZSRRE-_T N
Ft=A=t+—ALFE2AE
ERELCASRE  BEELE
BERELXAEEN-F—H
F—H—B2BNREHBERR
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Insurance Contracts®
Definition of a Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a

revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued

in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to

References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards,

will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in

HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
e Llevel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate

share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after

the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial assets within
the scope of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, which continue
to be measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set

out in respective sections.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
(such as packages that bundle food and beverage and other
services with hotel stays), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone

selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring

control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group's performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right to

invoice.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would

not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods

or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one

year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions

of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in

the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)

e  payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a

finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured

under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such

as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

Share-based payment (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(CONTINUED)

Share options granted to employees (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments

determined at the grant date without taking into consideration

all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line

basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of

equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the

end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate

of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based

on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.

The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is

recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense

reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment

to the share-based payments reserve. For share options that

vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share

options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously

recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred

to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after

the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the

amount previously recognised in share-based payments reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESITHER @)

(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use

assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary

differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the

same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the
Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities in their income
tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each
uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely amount or

the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the

relative fair values at initial recognition.

When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as

property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period

in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H E£ — =&
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss

(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating

unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including

all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
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or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or K H s B Sk IT a8 ) & 50 1) 46 FE R BRE BR
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the EFEZFE -

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary RAKE B BEBBEFEENREK
course of business are presented as revenue. 25 Al o

AEBBRHBERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

e IR ERR MR

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFHER @

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) o =N )

Financial assets (CONTINUED) THEE (§)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets T EEZ DIEREREE ()

(CONTINUED)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, FEEMmEMEERZBRAAEMEERK

except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial mIRATEENE BEVBERRS

recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to B RS R RIS VA ER S B E B

present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment 2B WMEBEZKRAMIIEBIEER

in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is IIEB BB RELERFEIR B ES G

neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised FTEAz EAMUETBABHNIAR

by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 B REBEF AR REMERENEME

“Business Combinations” applies. AR5 ZERENEEANTER

A financial asset is held for trading if: WA LR TIER MEemEERFE

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in e HFEARTAKKRLEMEA
the near term; or B4

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified e HRUTHERABABRAEESE
financial instruments that the Group manages together and HERBzE#HM eI AAS —
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or o BimEIH IR B R HERR

7

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a e HUWIIBERAEXHHMIAZL
hedging instrument. H£TH-

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset BEAI - i i R 4R B SH A AN SE iR B A 2

that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI HRHZATEEFECeREERT

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly REBBEREATEEFTE A AHE

reduces an accounting mismatch. BRet@EZ R @i - BIZARSEE R A

TEE N AT BEE 2 185 ©
REBRE HEZRBR AT IS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFHEE®@

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SRI A

Financial assets (CONTINUED) & F & E (18)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets PHEEZDHERERTZE(B)

(CONTINUED)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income () BESHACAR RAB A
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest HEBRRBHEKATENSREE
method for financial assets measured subsequently at BRI B AT BB BR M RIAT
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying PABERR o FIBWMATEBE —THE
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount REEREREERAERAMET
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that W8 HEEREERENS
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). BMEERN (RTX) - RERL
For financial assets that have subsequently become RERAENSMEEMS - AT
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying —HREHE  MBMADBBYE S
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the RMEEBHAAERERFET
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit HER - M REERESBTE
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so MEERBRIE FeaEETH
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest HREERE  ABREZEET
income is recognised by applying the effective interest BLRERRERNREHIE -
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset BBBERIEEARZ S M E
from the beginning of the reporting period following the ENREABEST BRAINARER o

determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BRERRATEETEZEM
BE

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being LREENTR G R KA K

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as BRAEMEE KSR FEER

\ﬂ]

FVTOC| are measured at FVTPL. EXREEAEBEMEE KGR
AFEEFENGEG - BB BB
BRAFEEASE -

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the BBHEERAFEESENSR
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains BERE®REPRRAFEER
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss £ mEMAFEEKESEERD
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest RIBE N HER o N IBa BERHF IR
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other HABRTRESREEMRR
income, gains and losses” line item. MEA R ERAE  LaFAHA

[EfWA - W MEEIEE -

1 1 2 ) GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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J __;,_.IJ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix

with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

REBEEZHEERERAT
20195 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

3. EREE+E&§E &)

I A @)
T HEE (&)
EHEERE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

(i)

=& E R E LN
REFEEERERAREER
ERBEENE  AKEHERT
AR EHmAHELENELRRRE
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H3E QR PR AETTEL B o ETT UL AT
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ESHREEER -
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3. SIG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

0)

(i)

44
j(/E_'. & EI’IX\M

20195 3R

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —
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(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—ZF— N F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFHEE®@
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SRI A
Financial assets (CONTINUED) & A E (8)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED) A E A (%)

(if)

Definition of default (CONTINUED)
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days

past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

(ii)

EHEE (B)

TNim EX i - REBRS > i
MEEBHBEBORAD HLR
#BRIEAEEABAREREBERE

information to demonstrate that a more lagging default WERERAERENENRER
criterion is more appropriate. BEE -
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) FEERECREE

|

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a

concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

ERMEEE BN LEN (HZ
TREERAARARREREBK
THFE) BERBEEFEERE-
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o BITAUERANEAMRA
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3. SIG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

44
j(/E_'. & EI’IX\M

20195 3R

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as

the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

ER = n+BZﬁi &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H E£ — =&

3.

|

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. T THABERZEZEEZRR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (#)
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, NTABERRZEZBEURNREE
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of MR ZEATHBAREZZ EthEE R
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing B MELGFEAEUERERAANBARET
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and —UREEZEERBEREEZEXR
liabilities within the next financial year. [=L B o
Estimated impairment of property, plant and ME - BELREURGSHE
equipment and right-of-use assets BEZBEMNM
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are VI - HER R R B A RE RS ERK
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, RNRRAMERBE(E) 27 - NE
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group EEERGRER NEEXKETE
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in BT R AEE Er - DEAFTE AT S8R
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators METRERRETEESEBEMNTEM
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of EHREATFR: QBEERAERSLR
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case BAKEeE (NEEREEBR  REE
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which SEERAELEMGTHRRREEREZR
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and BEFHE) ZF RQRMEr T kE <&
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating (BEReREBA) FEERNEE
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an ERBREERIRE - BT ] ge b5t &
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the AMEENAKOEE(BEEAEEE)
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use B AREERAEEMBERSEAE
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the IR AI U [B] & 58 - B R R R fh AT (B2
CGU to which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and FREMEBAF AR R RX)
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the Al e ¥R BRI T AR IRE R B E E
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present -4
value used in the impairment test.
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of property, plant RZE-—NEF+_HA=+—80 &5
and equipment and right-of-use assets are HK$253,961,000 Alet Rz HERREAKLER
and HK$33,746,000 (2018: HK$296,234,000 and nil) HEEZE MR E R 22,128,000
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses of 78 7T 9,200,000 7T (ZF — N\ F ¢
HK$22,128,000 and HK$9,200,000 (2018: HK$14,772,000 and 14,772,00078 7T & ) 1% - ¥ % - #2
nil) in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use REBHEARGEAREENREES A A
assets that have been recognised respectively. Details of the 253,961,000/ 7t &33,746,000/8 7T (=
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use Z— )\ : 296,234,000 TR &) - )
assets are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively. ¥ BERIHEARCAREERBEZ
FHIBED RIRER I TE15516
REBRE HEZRBR AT .;_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H E£ — =&

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including

market rent and capitalization rate.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of investment properties is HK$90,000,000 (2018:

HK$130,000,000).

Depreciation of hotel properties

Hotel properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with consideration of the remaining term of
the leases and the remaining years of co-operative period. Their
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s hotel properties. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the rate at which the hotel properties

are depreciated and the carrying amount of the hotel properties.

—NFFT-HA=t—BLFE

4.

EEr TR = 2 EERIR
(&)

BEYFZ2EE
REMEDRBBI G EMETZ
fEEMRA T BESIE - #E AT EE
B fi (B AR AT AR SR 0 B TR RS T
TR G RERENEFERR (B
e RASLE) -

BREBERSH AAREFEHEL
HlE - WIEMEEMARSRERIEE
MEZENTRARENEERR -
ZEBRBIZEDEERAEEREY
ENTFEEREZHRENER '#EJ
BreERCRELERERAE -
—NWE+=ZA=+—8 LEYWEE
[ {8 490,000,000/ 7t (ZF — A :
130,000,000 7T) °

BEYRNE

B 5 ) 5 DA B AROR IR B A E AT E A 4R 1
WE It RBENZRBRFHRAEH
MFBER HAUERAFHRRESY
AEEFBEBRERAREBEYRE

HE BN S HIR 2 (b5t - REFEEM
AeBREFAEFEBEMENEE
KB Y% 2 BREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

e IR ERR MR

T-AF+-A=t—BILER

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A THBERZEEZRIR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (%)
Deferred tax asset REBEEE
As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been —WF+ZA=+—H BRXE
recognised on the tax losses of HK$694,724,000 due to the 2 S ) SRR AN BT FEAI - R 4R B R TR &
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the $8694,724,000/8 THERIELETH B EE ©
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future BREBIREE B REZFURNKRZE
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the B RIS B 40 R 2Rk ) 35 JE AR 5 B 1
future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated ERE o MBI E & 2 R RER T i i
are more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances BEHANEERBERAEEFEHEECRK
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a JERBUaFIEFTEAEEE  AlnjgegE
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which BENEEHBEERR  BABE®ER
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such HRERAMNIBRER °
recognition takes place.
Provision of ECL for trade receivables EZREWNERABEHEEEE
3]

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired HEEAGHREEREZE 5 ER
are assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses R BME S B RETERNMG It
provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables which oh - REBR B RE BB ERI3EE
are individually insignificant. The provision rates are based on AZBZRBER 2 BAREEESE - &
past due analysis as groupings of various debtors that have BERLDERBHHINETE - RARTH
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's FEW R AR A B BRLUERER - #E
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking PR ERAEE 2 BEROR - Wt
information that is reasonable and supportable available without RERMN B EEAKARKE T i a]
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical SNEEEFRBNAEIEAR - KE
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the wMEAH HBEERINEORTIN
forward-looking information are considered. BAEHE - et RATEEER 2 25 -
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The BHEEEAREIGEHEDIRE A
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are HEBEEEBRRAEEE 5 EWER
disclosed in note 33. Z BRI MY 33K E

REBRRE HEZREBRAA W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

4.

1247+

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. T THABERZE 2 EEZRR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (#%)
Impairment of other receivables H 1t & W AR FORLE
ECL for other receivables are assessed on 12m ECL basis as H b e W BR 5k 2 TR EA{E BB BT 14 Thi%
there had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial TZEAEBEEEREEET  RE
recognition. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical EEE R B 7125 R AR M E
credit loss experience, general conditions, internal credit ratings meFFENERAEBRAEEEEL
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting o B REMEERT AR KT
date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The provision of & B HIRAR IR 2R AR 2 TERIVEH o
ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. TEHEEEREREX G EHTE -
REVENUE 5. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts REEFEHNZBRANDE
with customers
2019
“E-hF
Hotel Securities
operations trading
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERE BHEEHE
Segments P FHET FHT
Types of services [iiE0 3t
Hotel rooms BIEERE 138,675 -
Food and beverage A 28,807 -
167,482 -
Geographical markets i35 T 35
Hong Kong BB 75,427 -
The PRC H 92,055 -
167,482 -
Timing of revenue recognition BON 421
At a point in time RIE— R 2 28,807 -
Over time & R 138,675 -
167,482 -

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —T— W F+_A=+—HBHILFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA )
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts REEFENZWAND E )
with customers (CONTINUED)
2018
—ZE-N\F
Hotel Securities
operations trading
HK$'000 HK$'000
R R BHEE
Segments 28 FET FET
Types of services PR35 A
Hotel rooms BIERE
Food and beverage B
Geographical markets 35 T 45
Hong Kong B
The PRC o
Timing of revenue recognition W R B
At a point in time IR 2

Over time Bi& R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

5.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts

with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment

5. WA @

REEFFEHNZWANDE @)

TXHINREEPAN WAL EE
BT Bk -

information.

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-NF
FET FH&T
Hotel operations B JE 167,482 214,138
Securities trading BHEE - =
Revenue from contracts with customers REZEF&SHZWA 167,482 214,138
Rental income from leases RKEHEEZHSKA 47,655 48,873
Dividend income f& B0 A 239 -
Total revenue @I A 215,376 263,011

Performance obligations for contracts with EFEHNZERNER

customers

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers consist of

hotel rooms and food and beverage.

The transaction price of hotel rooms and food and beverage is
the net amount collected from the customer for such goods and
services. The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the good or service is transferred or rendered to
the customer during their stay at the hotel or when the delivery

is made for food and beverage.

The Group has certain contracts that include multiple goods and
services, such as packages that bundle food and beverage and
other services with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each good or service based upon its relative
standalone selling price. The Group primarily determines the
standalone selling price of hotel rooms and food and beverage
based upon the amount that the Group charges when each is

sold separately in similar circumstances to similar customers.

AEBZEFEHBABREBERERER

FARBEEMARAEFPEEIRERER
IRBEXEINERE  BEARSHZ
R HERARIMELA -

pu}

AEBZETANERZEER MR
% S ER R AR S BB R (X 4
BZBE  RZEREEME  NEEIMN
HEBYEEEESRASREEER
KR AEBETEERERUBRT
HAaBUEFREBRHEERRE REK
BRRzeRETSEZEBER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA )
Leases HE
2019
HK$'000
Bt W
FHET
For operating leases: HEEHEMS
Lease payments that are fixed B E HER R 47,655
Variable lease payments that do not A FEEUR A 5 Bk R R /9 AT &4 F & S R
depend on an index or rate -
Total revenue arising from leases HEEENBKA 47,655
2018
HK$'000
—ZT-)\F
FAT
Total revenue arising from leases: HEEAMEYE
Operating leases income — property KEBEEWA -3 48,873
No contingent rental is included in operating lease income. FAHS W AT ALEHERA -
The Group leases out various offices, warehouses, advertising AEEREBELEHELAZEARAE
spaces, restaurants and retail stores under operating leases with EE BEM BERTEE HEA
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial BAXN ZEHEENVHBER—RKRE
period of one to eight years. —ENF o
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result HRMEHEENNEEERE /I
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in BERGE HASEEYERBERHEM
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease HEENERR - HEGOWESHAF TR
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s BEERRE SEMAAREE R RE
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term. BEMROEEE -
REBRE HEZRBR AT s
20195 3R 1 27
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

6.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,

being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance focuses on types of services provided and activities

carried out by the Group’s operating divisions.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8

"QOperating Segments” are as follows:

1.  Hotel operations - hotel accommodation, food and banquet

operations and rental income from rentals of shop units

situated in the hotels of the Group and from rentals of

investment properties; and

2. Securities trading - trading of equity securities

KED
AAARRTES NEIBLBREE
TEBEEREE]) 2BRARHSRER

KD BERAZEMNDEPIRARE
REDBERREEZRBBERAETZ
EEIR

BmE AR L D BN FER RS E A 23,

ay
Pl

/Iﬂﬂ

BiRIBEE BN B mELE

BB A mED R

BEEEms A%
Bl B85k [4E &
RN

1. BEKZE-BEERE ERELES
X% URRBURAEEEED
EHELNESRRAREDME
MEZEA R

2. BHFEE-BABEFEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

B R AR M

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE

A N KE
6. BKEDHE®

DTEBWARRE
AT AREBRAREEZARE SR

reportable segments: LT o
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-—hEF+=-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERE EHEE wE
FHERT FHET FHET
Segment revenue 2EBA 215,137 239 215,376
Segment (loss) profit excluding 24 (BB &F (TEEY
depreciation of property, plant ¥ HMBRERZENE D
and equipment, impairment loss % - # & KR HERERBE
on property, plant and equipment, £ F3 & & & B B 5 18 LA & 55
Impairment loss on right-of-use EEEREC AT EEBEE
assets and loss on fair value E18)
changes of investments held
for trading (9,443) 228 (9,215)
Depreciation of property, VI R RBETE
plant and equipment (29,544) - (29,544)
Impairment loss on property, M S REREREEE
plant and equipment (7,356) - (7,356)
Impairment loss on right-of-use FREEERERE
assets (9,200) - (9,200)
Loss on fair value changes of RIEEBERENFEESE
investments held for trading &8 - (3,089) (3,089)
Segment loss DFEEE (55,543) (2,861) (58,404)
Directors’ emoluments EE o (3,548)
Interest income on bank deposits R 1T 2 2 F B U A 7,623
Loss on fair value changes of KREMERNTEBEZIYER
investment properties (37,743)
Central administrative costs and HR R AT AR R R 9 B 1 3
unallocated corporate expenses 2 (17,426)
Loss before tax PR A& 1B (109,498)
AMEBEHBERARAT -

20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =7
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED) TERARESE @)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-—N\E+=-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B JE A EHEE RE
FHET FHET FHET
Segment revenue ZEBA 263,011 - 263,011
Segment profit (loss) excluding SR (BER) (TEED
depreciation of property, plant ¥ BERZBIHEUAR
and equipment and loss on fair FIEEEREZ
value changes of investments NEEEZEEE)
held for trading 24,217 (403) 23,814
Depreciation of property, M MERRETE
plant and equipment (36,422) - (36,422)
Loss on fair value changes of RIEEERENTEE
investments held for trading FB)E18 = (9,442) (9,442)
Segment loss D HEEE (12,205) (9,845) (22,050)
Directors’ emoluments EEME (3,226)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFERZ T EWA 3,975
Loss on fair value changes of SEMERNTFEBEEHEE
investment properties (26,704)
Central administrative costs and HRRITER A AR MR D R
unallocated corporate expenses TERAE (17,760)
Loss before tax BT Al RS 18 (65,765)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same BE SRz &R R BN 3T AR &

B e BERER - 2 RBEESDRE
EZBR ERYRIEESFHE R
TERZABEA - BREMEZAFE

as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment

loss represents the loss from each segment without allocation

of directors’ emoluments, interest income on bank deposits, (B8 8 55 18 A % B s 4T R 7S J% 5k ) iR
loss on fair value changes of investment properties and central TERYT - WIIREELERREER
administrative costs and unallocated corporate expenses. This is HENEARRFERELAEDE -

the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

1 30 ) GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. RKE D (@)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTRAEERIRERLCEDAZE
by reportable and operating segments: ERBEII:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-nE  —E-)\F
FHERT FHET
Segment assets TEEE
Hotel operations IR 324,399 306,018
Securities trading BHEEHE 200 7,216
Total segment assets NEEERE 324,599 313,234
Investment properties REMHE 90,000 130,000
Bank balances and cash IRITARBR KRR ® 1,816,076 1,859,781
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBEHECZEE 49,910 50,438
Other unallocated assets HRDBEEE 10,785 37,589
Consolidated assets REBE 2,291,370 2,391,042
Segment liabilities PEEE
Hotel operations B 5 4 115,926 93,987
Securities trading BHEE 485 2,592
Total segment liabilities DHRAERTE 116,411 96,579
Tax liabilities MIEEE 9,859 9,873
Deferred tax liabilities REHESE 30,055 33,041
Liabilities classified as held for sale PERFIELEZAE 37,053 36,618
Consolidated liabilities FEeBatE 193,378 176,111
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERSBERBEEE D BEERSAE
allocating resources between segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e FEEREHE/IRELELEDE H

REWME RITEHIEE 28
REFHEZEEREMARDE
BERN : &

investment properties, bank balances and cash, assets

classified as held for sale and other unallocated assets; and

FEaEHELRELEDE
EE MR ER B AER DB RR
EHE 2 BEERIN

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than o
current and deferred tax liabilities and liabilities classified as
held for sale.

j(/E_'. Dﬂygzrﬁgjjii HXEIZE/L\\—J Ll
20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. RKE D (@)
Other segment information Hibp BER
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—hE+-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Unallocated Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I BEEE AR mant
FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the FFTESBEEXK
measure of segment loss SBEERTA
or segment assets: ZFIE
Addition to property, Y - es AR E IS N
plant and equipment 476 - - 476
Depreciation of property, W - B NGB
plant and equipment 2IhE 29,544 - 276 29,820
Depreciation of right-of-use FREREZITE
assets 38,703 - 803 39,506
Loss on disposal of property, HE&E¥E  HETRE
plant and equipment ) k= 29 - - 29
Write-off of trade receivables i34 2 5 e Ik BE X 934 - - 934
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—N\F+=-A=+—HLEFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Unallocated Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B JE A BHEEE RABE REEF
FHET FHET FHT FHT
Amounts included in the FTENEEE
measure of segment loss LD FEEERA
or segment assets: ZRIE
Addition to property, Y3 - RS IR N
plant and equipment 543 - - 543
Depreciation of property, L E g
plant and equipment 2T E 36,422 = 276 36,698
Loss on disposal of property, &Y « #eE RERE
plant and equipment 2B 21 = = 21
132 - GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers

is presented based on the location of operations. Information

about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the

geographical location of the assets.

R ER 2\ K =
;%E(é.%]] fE(éEi)

1 13 & Y
AEBEEBRTREEE -

BRAKEREIBER ZWANER
TEREHIH 2 - BREAKEIERD
BEZERDREEMEMEMERY

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RENBES Z WA kRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BE-NEF —ET-\F —E-nF —E—)\F
FHET FHT FH#T FHT
Hong Kong B 75,666 106,746 33,359 9,943
The PRC R 139,710 156,265 344,348 416,291
215,376 263,011 377,707 426,234

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Information about major customers

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for both years.

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R

M : FIRPEETERERTA -

FHREEFEFZEH

RWEFE  LEERE-FFHAMER

WAL ASEERWZEIEI0% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EtWA - s REBE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE-hEF —ZT-)\F
FET FAT
Loss from changes in fair value of BEEZEATEBEFEZ
financial assets mandatorily cRMEELATEEEHEE
measured at FVTPL
— held for trading — FEEEKRE (3,089) (9,442)
Imputed interest income on Meke 2 HEREKA
rental deposit 998 =
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary #E$H —E M B A A 2 &8 (2,094) =
Net exchange loss (R = Deck-t (701) (2,187)
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZF B WA 7,623 3,975
Sundry income FIFRA 2,175 1,518
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HBELRREERE
plant and equipment (29) (21)
Write-off of trade receivables W E S AR (934) =
3,949 (6,157)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BMIERA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
FET FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZAE 3,449 =
Interest on other borrowings HEmEEZHE - 376
3,449 376

|
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

9. FIEHMx (%)

2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
—ZE-hEF —ZT-)N\F
FHERT FHET
Current tax: BVEARR I8
PRC Enterprise Income Tax TS 3,504 5,694
Under(over)provision in prior years: MEFEREENE GRERERE)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FE SR 179 171
Capital gain tax (Note) B AWz T (T EE) - (66,744)
Deferred tax (note 26): RIERIIE (M 5E26)
Current year REE (2,285) (5,309)
1,398 (66,188)

Note: This relates to reversal of provision for capital gain tax payable
in relation to a deemed disposal of a subsidiary in the PRC
that was completed in November 2013.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed

at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for both years.

REBEEZHEERERAT
20195 3R

Mk BAKSEHEARBRSEETEN
—EHBAR(R_F—=F+—
H5ERk) FEAS B 7N W o 756 B B4 18k
ERESNE

RZE—-—NF=A=+—H &
AERB(CT—EFERE (BF]) (B
THRIEPER) ([ZER]) - 5| ARR
HFEREHE ZEERR_T—N\F
SAZ+HN\BEERAERE  THAZA
HEEBR BRERREFEHESE
A EKEEE K EH2,000,0007% T 6
JRE B W% FI 75 128.25% M B R F -
382,000,000/ 7T &) F& 2R B F A% 12
16.5% M) B R HFH o TR E AR A5
Tt 3R i) 2 ) 5= [ B B B R T v A1 S A2 A
1216.5% M)t — B R EF -

RABEERE  BMAFESEGE
FpkNeBEHRAMBRRLESK
FE - WMEFENEBFERIIEMET
FERFHEFH16.5%51F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED) 9.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both

years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "“EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate

of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

FrE#HES (KR) @

HRAEERMEFELERNETBES
FERBE A - B UL EAEL FR NGB
Bifh o

REFBECEMEBHE(TREMEB
ED REEMETOREMIGS - B
BRARRMIEFEZHEH25% °

REFzBERS (ER) I HEESBER
Ko E At 20 T M 5 2k 2 Bk 750 AT BS 15 S AR A0
™

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
s =&
FHERT FHET
Loss before tax B35 Al E5 48 (109,498) (65,765)
Tax at the domestic income tax RAM TSR R25% T8 2 B8
rate of 25% (Note) gD (27,375) (16,441)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HEBEN AR ZAZ 2
for tax purpose MG e 7,375 5,763
Tax effect of income not taxable HBEBENBERT WA Z
for tax purpose Mg 2 (1,047) (1,156)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBBEBER MG R 21,194 12,776
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR BIEEE
not recognised - (973)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZAIMBEREZR 2
differences not recognised MG 2 1,073 416
Reversal of capital gain tax on gain on HAEHE BB ARKN
deemed disposal of a subsidiary U 2 18 B8 B AN W a5 B B [ - (66,744)
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEEETR 178 171
Income tax expense (credit) for the year RNEEZEREZ (Bx) 1,398 (66,188)

Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax

rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is

substantially based is used.

t: AEAAMBERRNEERER 2

TERBHAAEREZERZT

EEMBBE -

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

10. £ E (F8) &aF

FABEEMNSHREEA)TH&RIE

(crediting):
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
e i —2-\%F
FET FHET
Depreciation of property, YIE - WIS REREITE
plant and equipment 29,820 36,698
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEERE 39,506 -
Total depreciation EBE 69,326 36,698
Auditor’'s remuneration ZHEN N & 3,027 2,971
Cost of inventories recognised ERRAXH 2 FEXR
as an expense 20,390 24,238
Electricity, water and utilities BE  KERLNASBHBER 13,664 15,478
Employee benefits expense EERAMAX 81,349 87,801
Expense relating to short-term leases HiGHATE RSN IR ER
and other leases with lease terms B AR ELERIFE 1655 A #1218
ending within 12 months of the date RAEREMEERAN R
of initial application of HKFRS 16 1,043 -
Hotel management fee S ER B 26,105 24,472
Gross rental income from investment BEYEBHSRNR D 2L H
properties less negligible outgoings (FFAMA)
(included in revenue) (23,754) (24,808)
AMEBEHBERARAT -

20195 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NEZESRTHREZNE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, BiEER TR EEENTENHEE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong MERNEERITHREAHEMSWOT :

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—_ZFT—h&E+=-BA=+—HLEEFE

Mr. Chan
Mr. Mr. Mr. Wong Ms. Chan Pak
Dr. Yap, Lai Tsz Dong Bo, Kui Shing, Ling, Cheung,

Allan Wah** Frederic Danny Eva* Natalis Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EXBAL BPgERE EREE IERKE Rrzt* RE¥ELE @t

TR TR TR TRET TRET TR TEx

(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (e))
(Mt (a)) (B (b)) (BH=E() (B=E(d)) (K=E(e)

(A) Executive directors: (A) HITES :

Fees we 120 - 139 337 - - 596
Other emoluments: Hifi e
Salaries and other HeREM
benefits =Rl - 914 - - 1,699 - 2,613
Retirement RIKEF
benefits - 11 - - 8 - 19
Sub-total et 120 925 139 337 1,707 - 3,228
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their BT EENE AN ESEFREER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the NalRAREE 7 BRTREZ R -

Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NEZSERTHREZMNE @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (CONTINUED) BE-—_E—hE+=-HA=+—HLEE
(%)
Mr. Kwok Mr. Poon
Ka Lap, Kwok Hing, Mr. Sin
Alva Albert Chi Fai Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E KL BEEEE HEBEE #5t
FHET FET FET FHExT
(B) Independent (B) B IEHITES :
non-executive
directors:
Fees e 100 140 80 320
Other emoluments H i - - - -
Sub-total NEt 100 140 80 320
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown RSB ERITESME AR ES
above were for their services as directors of the Company. FERABEEMRBE IR o
HK$’000
FTHT
Total st 3,548

REBRENEZEREBRLT
20195 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S MNEFERITREBNE @)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ—_E—N\E+-A=+—HLEE
Mr. Chan
Dr. Yap, Ms. Chan Pak Cheung,
Allan Ling, Eva* Natalis Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREEL PRIS 20 1 BRE T AE Fe
FHET FHET FH&ET F&T
(A) Executive directors: (A) BITESE -
Fees Fiake 120 = = 120
Other emoluments: Hi € -
Salaries and other e REAMER
benefits - 2,848 - 2,848
Retirement benefits ROKAEF = 18 - 18
Sub-total NEE 120 2,866 - 2,986
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their A ITEEMES TIERNEERETER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the N RAEEH 2 EHTREZ R -

Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (CONTINUED)

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE

NESRTHRARME @

BE-Z2-N\E+-A=+—BHLLHFE

(#&)
Mr. Kwok Mr. Poon
Ka Lap, Kwok Hing, Mr. Sin
Alva Albert Chi Fai Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRI AE 7 B o A BB A @t
T FHET FHET FAT
(B) Independent (B) B FEHITES :
non-executive
directors:
Fees e 80 100 60 240
Other emoluments RRAE ) ET B 5k - - = =
Sub-total Net 80 100 60 240
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown FIBYERTEEME AR EE L

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

EARRBEFMEMH IR ©

HK$' 000

F#&T

Total #aEt 3,226

Notes: Bt 5E -

(@) Appointed with effect from 31 May 2019. (@) RZE—NFRA=+—HREZT-
(b)  Appointed with effect from 12 August 2019. by R=ZZT—NFNA+-HRBREZE-
(c) Appointed with effect from 30 September 2019. (0 RZZE—NAFNALA=+HBEZE-
(d) Retired with effect from the conclusion of the annual general d RARIR_ZE—NFRA=TH

meeting of the Company on 30 May 2019.
(e) Resigned with effect from 12 August 2019.

*

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva was also the chief executive of the Company

till 30 May 2019 and her emoluments disclosed above include

those for services rendered by her as the chief executive.

* %

Mr. Lai Tsz Wabh is also the chief executive of the Company from

31 May 2019 and his emoluments disclosed above include those

for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

both years.

REBEEZHEERERAT
20195 3R

* %

BT ZBRFBAFRGHERBERE -
RZE—hFNA+—ARRE-

REXELHRARATHEAER &
E-Z-NAFHEA=+HILL WH
REXHFBEEZHMEREBEEERTT
BAaHRHERE ML -

BTEXEEB-_FT—NL&FAA
=S+t —HRBITRARBITHREAR
MEREXAEE2MESBIEEIE
RITREBRBERB M -

RREFEREEERTRAEMESL
RERRERAME 2R -

|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

11.

12.

]

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office as a director in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group for

both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2018: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

11.

12.

EERTHEAZRME @

RAEFE AEELEREENEE
EARERBAEBmAEFNESENE
S ERIMARIMARER 218 2 &
BIIERBERL 2 M1E -

AfuGEHFMAL
ERNREEILHHHHALERE
EF (- \F: —HEF)  HB2
HERR EXH N HB=R (=T
—\F : WmR) BHEE IR AR
BB 2 B U B 2 PO H I
mF :

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

SE P Y

FET FAT

Salaries and other benefits e REAmRER 2,619 3,552
Retirement benefits RRAEF 54 72
2,673 3,624

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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12.

13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED) 12.huESHMA L@
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MEBATHE 2 WHARBEE 2 &
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the S ES ABIT
following bands is as follows:
2019 2018
Number of Number of
employees employees
—e-nF  —T-)\F
EEAH EE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 2
3 4
No emoluments were paid by the Group to these individuals as an RREFE  RNEBWTERERREE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation EAKERAAIEBMAZEALZMNE
for loss of any office in connection with the management of the AIMESERMAIMARER 218 2 8
affairs of any member of the Group for both years. B IERBER 2 E -
DIVIDENDS 13.[R B
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of 7 {8 4 2 AR 4 m) AN 1 | A AR AR R
the Company during both years. M ERIRMNRE °
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a special dividend RB|EARE NRABIEZERENRF
of HK2.5 cents (2018: nil) per ordinary share, in an aggregate B B AR E B2 S (ZF —
amount of HK$19,730,000 (2018: nil), has been proposed by ) 4% 519,730,0008 T (=&
the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the —N\F &) TEAFRERERRRE
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. AEEHEER -
REBRE HEZRBR AT e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

e IR ERR MR

T-AF+-A=t—BILER

20195 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

14.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14. BREE
KAREAEAEEESREARBEEE
TR T B E

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-nE  —F NF
FHERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ F{EETESREARR#EEIE 2
of the Company for the purposes of AAEEB AEEFERNERE
basic and diluted loss per share (95,435) (3,785)
Number of shares g2 §E|
2019 2018
—E-h#F =T N\F
Weight average number of ordinary REFEEREAREEEFER Y
shares for the purposes of basic and TR INE T8 E
diluted loss per share 789,211,046 789,211,046

The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not

assume the exercise of the Company’s share options since their

assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

|

=T 5 M E 2 2 B B E 18 I 3R
RITEARB 2B - RERRET
EREESSEHERERRD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - MBI RR1E
Office
Furniture equipment
Hotel Leasehold and Motor and
properties  improvements fixtures vehicles  machinery Total

HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
(Notes)

B A BAZRE
BENE  NEEE REE nE T H At
AT FAT FAT FATL T A7
(3)
Cost HA
At 1 January 2018 AZE-\5-5-H 653437 120410 17,750 1846 20041 822,484
Additions NE - - 520 - P} 543
Reclassified as held for sale BN EARELE (166619 (2475  (2,026) (25) (23928  (195,300)
Disposals i3 - - (219) - (110) (329)
Exchange adjustments EHRE (38075 (4,849) (820) M) (143 (45239)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-F=1-H 448743 113086 15,205 1,523 3603 582,160
Additions TE - 65 411 - - 476
Disposals e - - (314) = (8) (322)
Exchange adjustments B AT (10733 (1783) (270) (21) (51)  (12.859)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-AFtZA=t-A 438010 111368 1502 1502 3544 569,45
Depreciation and impairment HEREE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-f-H 80775 102231 1238 798 2507 421373
Provided for the year FEEER 31,306 3,093 1,636 262 201 36,698
Reclassified as held for sale ERABABELE (124,258) (408)  (1,820) (22)  (1459)  (148,172)
Eliminated on disposals HEBHR = = (204) = 67) n)
Exchange adjustments S (17,562) (4,213) (635) (52) (1,400 (23,702)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-f=1-H 170261 100,903 11,339 781 2640 285926
Provided for the year TEERE 26,102 1903 1422 250 143 29820
Impairment loss recognised in profitorloss ~ REZPRAZFESE 6,927 429 - - = 7356
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - = (293) = = (293)
Exchange adjustments EiHE (5,446) (1,597) 218) (17) (36) (7.314)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=1-H 197844 101,638 12,250 1,014 2749 315,495
Carrying values K
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+-A=1-H 240,166 9,730 278 438 795 253,961
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+-A 278,482 12,183 3,866 74 91 296,234
BERENEERERLT W45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

B FE AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

15. 91 3% - ISRl @

MEWME BERREEE DRERE
S IA TSI A7 -

Hotel properties (comprising  Over the shorter of the term of BRI ¥ BLiwEREZHEE
land and buildings) lease of land use rights, or the (BFE i FHIF A EEARE R
remaining co-operative period RiETF) BREH(UAREH
RZEE)
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of THEYEEE HEFHHSE105
the lease, or 5 to 10 years (AEREFH AXE)
Furniture and fixtures 10% to 20% EMREE 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 81/,% to 20% E 8'/.% — 20%
Office equipment and 20% MREZRE 20%
machinery o e 23
Notes: Bt 5

(a)

Included in the hotel properties is a hotel property located
in Guangzhou (“Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel”) with carrying
value of HK$107,764,000 (2018: HK$127,405,000), net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,322,000 (2018:
HK$6,322,000), situated in Guangzhou. The Group holds the
land use rights and property right of the hotel property for a
term expiring in January 2037, under the name of Rosedale
Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou").

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement (the “Co-operative
Agreement”) entered into between Allied Glory Investment
Limited (“Allied Glory”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the minority shareholder (the
"PRC Partner”) of Rosedale Guangzhou, the co-operative period
for Rosedale Guangzhou is 50 years commencing from 15
January 1987.

Rosedale Guangzhou is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture incorporated in the PRC and its major asset is Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel, which it owns and operates. The rights and
ownership of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel would be transferred
to the PRC Partner upon the completion of the co-operative
period. Pursuant to the approval issued by the Foreign Economic
and Trade Commission, Rosedale Guangzhou was granted an
initial co-operative period of 30 years and such approval also
stated that, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
the co-operative period could be extended for a further period
of time but not more than 20 years. Rosedale Guangzhou
was then granted a business licence with a period of 30 years
which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry of the business
licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with Allied Glory
to jointly apply for the extension of the business licence to 15
January 2037.

(a)

BEEMESE —BMNREMNMER®R
E/4107,764,0008 T (=T — )\ &F :
127,405,000/ 7t) (0 k R 51 R E
[E5186,322,0008 70 (=& — J\F :
6,322,000/ L)) 2B E W% ([HE
EMMmE]D - AEBEUAEMNAER
EERART ([BEMNHAED ZEL4EF
EZBEMEZIHEAERERE
EEMEHER_S=tF—AEm -

REERKREFRAF (ALK &
RARFZBEIFZEMBAR) H
BEMIABZ L &R (TR ERBH])
RuzatEgeaRE ((RRED
EMNBEBOASERRS - LNEF—
A+HABREFA+F -

JE N 30 B8 /& 7 P B RE 1 AR 32 #9 R S
BERERCE HEXT2EERENM
IH R H JE 1 & M 30 BB B JE MR B N 3
BEARKE - BMARBE 21
MERBEEBREIEHR TR EER
EREBH REBEHEIMNMELESR
BeBHoitE BMNAENYS
BEHR=1T% WMZAMEIRETA
EFAETHREZBERT  A1ED
E-—FERTZR_tFH- &
MIABE R RGN =THFH2X
HRER-_Z—+tF—A+HAE
e MEXERBERR  PRBHE
BESKAERRABFREEAR
ERE—T=+F—-—F+HH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

KREERR

20195 3R

(CONTINUED)

Allied Glory, therefore, on 8 July 2016 applied to the China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (the
“CIETAC"”) for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”) to
reinstate the co-operative period of Rosedale Guangzhou to
50 years and the PRC Partner to cooperate with Allied Glory to
jointly apply to relevant government authorities to extend the
business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou for a further period of
20 years.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received the Arbitral Award issued
by the CIETAC pursuant to which the co-operative period for
Rosedale Guangzhou under the Co-operative Agreement shall
be extended until 15 January 2027 and the PRC Partner shall
provide all necessary assistance to Rosedale Guangzhou in the
application process for extending its business licence.

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration.
The PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to
cooperate with Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied
Glory then submitted an application to Guangzhou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Intermediate Court”) for enforcement
of the Arbitral Award and the application was accepted by
the Intermediate Court in July 2017. The Intermediate Court
directed such application to Guangzhou Haizhu Court which
subsequently issued an execution order (the “Execution Order”)
to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and Information
Technology (B/MNTTEEKEBHY T AB (= 21EB) and Bureau
of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision (BN
BIRETISEME S EBEER) on 14 September 2017 enabling
Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence. On 30
November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended due to the
fact that, based on the reply from the Bureau of Guangzhou
Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision, the unilateral
application for the extension of the business licence could not
be proceeded as it is subject to further re-submission with
relevant extension documents.

On 18 July 2019, the business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou
which expired on 15 January 2017 was renewed and the
operating period of Rosedale Guangzhou was extended to 15
January 2027.

HEERERQF

15. 903 - ISR Rl @)

B eE : (&)

(a)

(%)

At &8R- ~"FtANA
MPEBRREEZESHEREES ([
HEEe)BRBHAE (THAE)
LA IEHREZER+FEL BkH
BEE4EALEELRMEBEBRF
BRBFEMNAENE EHRBE—
HIEHA204 -

R-ZE—tFRA=H AR KE
MHEZESELHNERE Bt &
EREESREETMEMNMPEAE
HAERE-_ZE-_+F—A+HA
BRBREHEERMNIAERE B FIT
REZXHNRBRNBEFRARE
WAZERREN o

BREBREEOR NEHAHAE
B B2 EMAHETREBEED
RN A FEEHEERR K
ABEEEGREENRFEHITH -
& R Ak A BN T AR AR ROERE ([
FoEB]) REBFRTEORE - M
HECDESPREGER _T—tF
+ AW o B FORRE % B R R R
BMNEBEHERER W HER -F
—tFAA+HEBEREMNTEKER
METEBEMNES R REMT
BRETSNEEEEERREH
wWire (TS BELRFM
MEXHR - R-_T—tF+—A
=tH BTSBEE  RRERE
ENTBERETSNEBEEER
PHEE ETERFLEREEHR
RAGE-TBREXEELTHX
&I ATHETT ©

R=F—n%EEA+TNR - EMH
BER-F—t%—A+HAER
ZEENBEES  TENAEL
MEEERE T = +F—A+HA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(b) Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel
property with a carrying value of HK$132,402,000 (2018:
HK$151,077,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$6,927,000 (2018: nil), situated in Shenyang. The Group
holds the land use rights and property right of the hotel

property for a term expiring on 28 April 2046.

(c) As at 1 January 2018, included in the hotel properties in the
PRC is a hotel property with a carrying value of HK$52,038,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$17,496,000, situated
in Luoyang. The Group holds the property rights of the hotel
property whilst the land use rights is held by Luoyang Power
Supply Bureau (now known as Luoyang Power Supply Company
of Henan Province Electric Power Company of State Grid),
a non-controlling shareholder of Luoyang Golden Gulf (as
defined in note 22). Prior to the Group's acquisition of Luoyang
Golden Gulf in 2004, on 15 April 1999, Luoyang Power Supply
Bureau and Luoyang Golden Gulf entered into a land use rights
agreement pursuant to which Luoyang Power Supply Bureau
agreed to permit Luoyang Golden Gulf to use the land upon
a term commencing from April 1999 to April 2049 for hotel
operations. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the
hotel properties of HK$42,211,000 was transferred to held for

sale, details of which are set out in note 22.

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

The Group incurred operating losses in its hotel operations
segment in the PRC, and there were certain adverse changes
in the market and economic environment in the PRC in which
the hotel operations of the Group are located. Accordingly,
management has reviewed the recoverability of the relevant
carrying amounts of the CGUs in the hotel operations segment in
the PRC and the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts
of the individual assets of property, plant and equipment if their
fair values less costs of disposal are available, as appropriate.

Each CGU represents each of the hotel operations that generate

independent cash flows.

15. 91 3% - ISRl @

B eE : (&)

(b) RAPBEZBEMESE—BMRE
f% ™ BR {8 A 132,402,000 7T (=
Z — J\4F : 151,077,000 7t) ($0 &
2 =t 8 B 5 186,927,000 T (=&
—N\F E))ZBIENE - AEE
BEZBEDEZLWERERE
EE#E FHEHER_ZWFMA
—+N\BE® -

© R=ZZE—NFE—F—H RFEHEZ
BEMESTE —EMNREEHERER
{8 £52,038,000/%8 7t ($1Bk R 5T R (E
[E53817,496,000/8 T) 2 B JE ¥ 3£ -
REERFBZBEMEZ M EER -
mtiFERERESBEKE(EER
MisE22) 2 IE R RIS EE R
(BRBRRITEEENAREEHE
AANFEE RASBR-_ZTTNF
BB IGEKER - R— A NANFEDE
A+HB ARG MEEREEEEK
BRI L AR E - Rt R
MEXRREMERBESKEFH
Zti - FHA—ANNFEOARE
“ZTAEMA I AEBEER -
R-_ZE—NF+_A=+—H8 &
JEYE 2 BRTEE 542,211,000 TE
BEREHEE  HFBHRME22 -

7 JE Y R R
AEENREEEQE D AELLE
B WERAEEEELBHETE
TS REERAHRETIANSEE B
b EREEENTRBEELCENEZ
AERSECEUREE TR E R
EoURERNDE BERREEEZ
HAREE (MEATEERHERS
AT (WER) 2 TRERE &5
SEAEMEELBYRE AR SE
IES K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of hotel properties
(CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations with the assistance of Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer
not connected to the Group. That calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year (2018: five-year) period for Guangzhou and
seven-year (2018: five-year) period for Shenyang, with reference
to past performance and expectations for market development,
and discount rates of 18.31% (2018: 10.76%) and 9.87%
(2018:

seven-year financial budget is used in the cash flow projections

10.76%) for Guangzhou and Shenyang, respectively. A

for Shenyang by management in the current year so as to fully
utilise the unused tax losses during the forecast period. The cash
flows beyond the period covered in the cash flow projections
were extrapolated using a 2% (2018: 2%) growth rate in

considering the economic condition of the market.

From the above assessment on each of the hotel operations
located in the PRC, the recoverable amount of the CGU of
the hotel operations in Shenyang is estimated to be less than
the carrying amount by HK$7,356,000. An impairment loss
of HK$7,356,000 is recognised in profit or loss and allocated
to property, plant and equipment of the hotel operations
in Shenyang on a pro-rata basis, of which impairment loss
of HK$6,927,000 was allocated to the hotel property in
Shenyang. No impairment nor objective evidence of reversal of
impairment loss in respect of the hotel properties in Guangzhou
was identified for both years based on the above impairment

assessment undertaken by management.

REBEEZHEERERAT
20195 3R
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BT o B E E5187,356,000 BT R I8
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16.FREEE

Leased premises

HK$'000
HEWE
FHET
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 (recognised upon initial RZE—-NF— B(REXERBEY
application of HKFRS 16) B EHERE 16ﬂﬁf§) 76,575
Additions NE 5,892
Exchange adjustments M W G B (18)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NAF+-A=+—H 82,449
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 RZFE—-—NF—H—H -
Provided for the year FREME 39,506
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss REZFPERZBERSE 9,200
Exchange adjustments ME W G B (3)
At 31 December 2019 - NF+=-_A=+—H” 48,703
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+ZA=+T—H 33,746

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total cash outflow for
leases amounted to HK$41,956,000.

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses and
hotel property for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties where its
hotel operations are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

 E—E-NF+_A=1+—HILFE -
& 2 IH 8% 541,956,000/ 7T ©

RREFE AEERELEHEERT
WMAZE RERBEYME BHEAHNZ
BEFH-—E=RFETE - HEKRKIIR
BERELEER  ABEREZTRIGRE
Rt o A EE B AH B e wT (4 T AT HE B IR
MERER AEERAANERNRETE
B AR SR BT H) AT o

o AEE R EBEEB L RE
METEBENE AKERXEMFEE
m (BEEEEE L) W MER A -
RATN —RENRAKBZE Y HEE
HeREEAMENHEL AN EE
NRAAELERBLZ7 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the

short-term lease expense disclosed in note 10.

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets

The Group incurred operating loss in its hotel operations
segment in Hong Kong, and there were certain adverse
changes in the market and economic environment in Hong
Kong in which the hotel operation of the Group are located.
Accordingly, management has reviewed the recoverability of
the relevant carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 of the
CGU represented by the Group’s hotel operation in Hong Kong
and the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts of the

individual assets of right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the hotel operation
in Hong Kong has been determined based on value-in-use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budget approved by management covering the
remaining lease term of the hotel property of one year, with
reference to past performance and expectations for market

development.

From the above assessment, the recoverable amount of the
CGU of the hotel operation in Hong Kong of HK$29,379,000 is
estimated to be less than the carrying amount by HK$9,200,000.
An impairment loss of HK$9,200,000 is therefore recognised in

profit or loss in respect of the relevant right-of-use assets.

AEEBE H BERERAT

20195 3R
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& 4 By 7Y A e [B] & #H29,379,0008
JT 8 R T 8 189,200,000 7T ° A It
HAEBEEREEENERERREERE
9,200,000/ 7T

|

151



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

16.

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$43,153,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$33,746,000 as at 31 December
2019. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. FHEERE ®

HERHHELD

oy RZTE-—AFE+ZRA=+—8 -
5t 18 B £ A 4 & 33,746,000 TCHERR
A& & {543,153,000/8 ¢ - A E H=E L
EmMERRZL  EHEEEFBEA
BRAMESERRIN - HEEETAA
tEfE B B KRS -

17. EY

HK$'000
FERT
Fair value AFEEE
At 1 January 2018 M-E—NF—H—H 164,000
Exchange adjustment HE X P8 (7,296)
Decrease in fair value recognised in the REZER 2 AFEBERD
profit or loss (26,704)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 130,000
Exchange adjustment PE W 58 & (2,257)
Decrease in fair value recognised in the RIERER 2 N EBER D
profit or loss (37,743)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-hF+=A=+—-H 90,000

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use in the PRC. The Group holds the
property interest under operating lease to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Accordingly, the property interest held
under operating lease is measured using the fair value model and

is classified and accounted for as investment properties.

AEBZREMERUNTEZEEK
ZERGRARNE AEEUKERER
BEYERERARRES R HEHEX
BE- A WEEHERE 2 WERE
SNERARTFEEREAE  ADER
ARFIBIREWE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

AN

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at the end
of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited
(2018: Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited), independent qualified

professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value at 31 December 2019 was determined based on
the income capitalization approach, where the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted at
the market yield expected by investors for this type of properties.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other

lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.

The fair value at 31 December 2018 was determined based
on the direct comparison approach that reflects the price per
square meter of comparable market transactions, adjusted for
differences in location and the remaining operating period of the

properties up to 15 October 2023.

There is a change in valuation technique in the current year as
the directors of the Company considered the use of income
capitalisation approach is more appropriate to reflect the
underlying value from the remaining operating period to 2023 in

determining the fair value of the investment properties.

EERZ HEERERATE

20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 17. 5 EWZ @)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and R ZEMEZ AT EER  ZEY
best use of the properties is their current use. ¥2BEAREERAEREENAR

Fair value Valuation Significant Relationship of
hierarchy technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
ATEERER EEIER EXEZERBARE EFRERAEBRATEAZBR
FERAHE
2019
—B-NF
Level 3 Income Monthly market rent taking into account the A significant increase in the market rent used
F=/ capitalisation differences in location, and individual factors, ~ would result in a significant increase in fair value,
W B A% such as frontage and size, between the  and vice versa.
comparables and the property, which ranged ~ FTAEMSHAEKEEN - @ EHLFEEARE
from Renminbi (“RMB") 100 to RMB700 per  fll* R Z K °
square metre per month.
BAMSHEE (B RATLRMERD % 2
wERENAR (HWMPIERAN) ZR)
NFFRABERARARE ([ARE] ) 100
TLEARKT00TT °
Capitalisation rate, taking into account the A slight increase in the capitalisation rate used
capitalisation of rental income potential,  would result in a significant decrease in fair
nature of the property, and prevailing market  value, and vice versa.
condition, of 15%. FTRAER L EEHEN  eBRAFEERNER
BARLE (BARBBABTERNAE D R2MA -
- HEEERRTTR) 15% ©
2018
—E-N\f
Level 3 Direct Market unit rate of RMB4,400 per square A significant increase in the market unit rate
i comparison metre used would result in a significant increase in fair
ERLEE M5B ERET T RARKS,4007T value, and vice versa.

Adjusting factors of 20% to 50% on location
BB E20%E S0%MAZRY

Adjusting factor of 28% on remaining
operating period

AEAFIRELH28%MARZE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

FAmEEMERAELEN @SR FEEAR
B RZIRA o

A significant increase in the adjusting factor on
location will result in a significant decrease in the
fair value, and vice versa.

MERERBAE LA SBRATFEEAER
PRI

A significant increase in the adjusting factor
on remaining operating period will result in a
significant increase in the fair value, and vice
versa.

AL BARZEARE 7 8B ATEAEK
B RZTRA -

FALEFEAFELE=MH -
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18.INVENTORIES

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumables and other

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

18. 78

T-AF+-A=t—BILER

FEROEN-—REERBETHAZE

goods of hotel which are to be utilised in the ordinary course of X HBMREMER - KSR
operations and are carried at cost.
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES H & U BR X
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z-hE —ZE-N\F
FET FH&IT
Trade receivables E 5 e AR
— contracts with customers — EHEBFEHX 2,644 6,591
- operating lease receivables — LR ERKIA 426 1,521
3,070 8,112
Rental and utility deposits %E(j?)}bk*hzj’: 21,025 21,094
Other receivables and prepayments H A E YRR R R
for operating expenses TET IR 21,905 16,779
Total trade and other receivables B 5 I H th & R R AR 46,000 45,985
Analysed as DR
Current ik 46,000 26,185
Non-current M ED - 19,800
46,000 45,985

Rental deposits paid were adjusted upon the initial application of

HKFRS 16. Details of the adjustments are set out in note 2.

ENEERS
R F 16K ETHE
RHEEE2 -

NEXERAESHERE
o AEZFIBHE

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented NTARESGREEFIZEZEHZS 2
based on the invoice dates. ARER AT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-NF =T N\F
FERT FHET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 2,673 6,359
31 - 60 days 31260H 184 492
61 — 90 days 61290H 68 356
Over 90 days HBiE90H 145 905
3,070 8,112
REBRRE HEZREBRAA e 155

20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H E£ — =&

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$397,000 (2018: HK$1,753,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$145,000
(2018: HK$905,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default since there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered

recoverable.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

are set out in note 33.

—NFFT-HA=t—BLFE

H fth & U8 BR

—NF+=ZA=+—8 F&£H
CESEWRERERBDEREOAER
397,000/ 7T (=& — /A% : 1,753,000
BIL) ZIEKER - %58 5 EIRK
RERBHEOH ZEBHEHRT -
145,000% 7T (Z & — /U4 : 905,000/
JL) BEHI0A A £ B EHE A
BH RARZEESRUERZEE
BRUWESEAZE  @ENHEERRATR
E

19. B R

B 5 & EMEBIR R 2R AR A FEER
RHIEE33 -

20. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 0. F1FEERE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —T—N\F
FET FHT
Financial assets mandatorily measured BEIBEBEREATEBEFEZ
at FVTPL: TREE
Listed securities held for trading: FEEE FhEs
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong - R&EB LT 2R AE S 189 7,068
21.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. RITHBR KRR E
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from RAT A ERIR T 35 F A 20.01% £2.41%
0.01% t0 2.41% (2018: 0.01% to 2.25%) per annum. (ZZE—\F :0.01%E2.25%) st 8 °
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out in RITAEBRRE R (4 2 SRR E M 33 -
note 33.
S GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 23 November 2018, Shropshire Property Limited (“Shropshire
Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Luoyang Dinghe Electric Construction Company Limited (&
(5 RHE NEFZ AR AR (the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”), pursuant
to which Shropshire Property has conditionally agreed to dispose
to the Purchaser of its entire equity interest in Luoyang Golden
Gulf Hotel Company Limited (&5 & /KEKEEBRAR)
(“Luoyang Golden Gulf”), a 60% owned subsidiary of Shropshire
Property, at a consideration of RMB61,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$68,500,000). On 22 May 2019, the
Purchaser and Shropshire Property entered into a supplemental
agreement to extend the long stop date to 10 months from the
date of the Disposal Agreement, with all terms and conditions
remain unchanged. A deposit of RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,906,000) was received by the Company in
November 2018 and included in “trade and other payables” (note

23).

The major asset of Luoyang Golden Gulf is Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel situated in Luoyang in the PRC. The assets and liabilities
attributable to Luoyang Golden Gulf, which is expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal group
held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below). The net proceeds of
disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss

has been recognised.

EERZ HEERERATE

20195 3R

e IR ERR MR

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

22. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

1 5 Su—

SALE (CONTINUED)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Luoyang Golden Gulf
classified as held for sale as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

(&)

2. 7 RARFFEHEZ L EA R

REEKERRERRIBRFELE
WEERBENTZHEFEIIMT

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

—ZE-hF —ZE-)N\F

FEx FAT

Property, plant and equipment e TN 45,328 47,128
Inventories FE 650 696
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE U BR F 2,906 2,435
Bank balances and cash RITEB RS 1,026 179
Total assets classified as held for sale DEABELENBREE 49,910 50,438
Trade and other payables B 5 I H Ath FE T BR R 36,191 35,535
Tax liabilities HMIEBE 130 350
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEEE 732 733
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEABELENRAR 37,053 36,618

The disposal was completed after the end of the reporting period

on 26 February 2020.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E5 R H MR
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NTRESGRENERFIEEZBHAIRZ
based on the invoice date. ARiie DA -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 2,507 2,913
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,388 565
61 — 90 days 61290H 461 499
Over 90 days HBB90H 833 804
5,189 4,781
The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60 BEZREEANFT30HE60H -
days.
Lease accruals were adjusted upon the initial application of HERETBRAREXERBSYBRE
HKFRS 16. Details of the adjustments are set out in note 2. A1 B AE - AR ZFBER
BiEE2 o
At the end of the reporting period, included in the Group's R EBAR - 78 & [ H b FE < /I8 4 61
other payables balance is a deposit received of RMB21,000,000 PEFEHELNPEN—FEHEQ
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,906,000) (2018: Wiz & A K #21,000, OOOﬂ:Mﬁﬁ 4
RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,906,000)) 23,906,000 L) (ZE—/\F : AR
in relation to the disposal of a subsidiary in the PRC, details of 21,000,000 7T (465 7 4923,906,00078
which are set out in note 22. TL))  HEFEE R M 22 o
The remaining balance of other payables at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+ZA=+—BEME
included deposits received from tenants of HK$4,336,000 (2018: NERPFARERBDEE KB, ES
HK$4,319,000), advance receipts from tenants of HK$6,137,000 4,336,000/ 7C (—Z — J\£F : 4,319,000
(2018: HK$6,261,000) and accrued operating expenses of A IT) ~ TRUKAE B 586,137,000 A T
HK$26,340,000 (2018: HK$49,205,000). (ZZ— )\ : 6,261,000 7T) K& &t
4R $26,340,00078 70 (=2 — )\ F ¢
49,205,000 L) °
REBRE HEZRBR AT o
20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—ZF— N F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24.HE 86
2019
HK$'000
—E-hF
FETT
Lease liabilities payable: EfEERE:
Within one year —F A 40,462
Within a period of more than one year —F LA BB RF 2 HE A
but not more than two years 1,836
Within a period of more than two year MEAELBEABBRFE ZHEAR
but not more than five years 855
43,153
Less: Amount due for settlement within A 1218 A A B B E B RUE
12 months shown under current liabilities (RrBBETIIR) (40,462)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A 1& | B3 (32 58
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBEFETIIR) 2,691
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 5. 60 EE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-nF  —F-)\F
FET FHET
Hotel rooms B IE R R 1,615 3,109
Food and beverage B 268 134
1,883 3,243
As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RZE-NF—H—B &6HNEER
HK$3,074,000. 3,074,000/ 7T ©
— GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 25. 608 Ew®W
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRINTEERZIMAFREEHEHOE
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BHBzEE -
Hotel Food and
rooms beverage
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERE B8
FH&T FH&T
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—-h&E+=-A=+—H
IHFE
Revenue recognised that was included ERRFTAFETNENBE
in the contract liability balance at the Rz A
beginning of the year 3,109 134
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—N\E+=-A=+—H
ILFE
Revenue recognised that was included EERTAFTNEHNEBEEHR Y
in the contract liability balance at the WA
beginning of the year 2,881 193
26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26 ELERIAEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and NTARRAFERBAFERRLEE
movements thereon during the current and prior years: REFHBEEEBEARELE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
HK$'000
3R B 78 3 B
FH&T
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F—HA—H 41,154
Exchange adjustment PE 5, 58 & (2,071)
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) FAE = (HEE9) (5,309)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 22) BN BAFIELE (M3F22) (733)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=—A=+—H 33,041
Exchange adjustment PE W 5 & (701)
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) st ATE S (MFFE9) (2,285)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-h&+=-BA=+—H 30,055
REBBRENSERERAA u

20195 3R
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$694,724,000 (2018: HK$635,728,000) available

for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability

of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$26,649,000, HK$24,306,000, HK$416,000,
HK$33,993,000 and HK$16,930,000 that will expire in 2020,
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 (2018: unrecognised tax losses of
HK$20,042,000, HK$26,649,000, HK$24,306,000, HK$416,000
and HK$33,993,000 that will expire in 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022

and 2023), respectively. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

27.SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

26.

EERBEE®

-~ =

RBEHLERE  AEB 2 KA
7% E548 5694,724,00008 7T (Z & — N\

F : 635,728,000% 7t) + A A {E K 8
ARAOR M - AR AR BETER B 18 2 % A
R - MW mRZ LB EERELER
HEE AMRABBTEBERBEKH 5
R-ZT_TF —_T-_—F T
F ZT_=FR_T_MHFIHZ

&5 %,%26,649,000;‘%7‘5 + 24,306,000
5T ~ 416,000/ 7T ~ 33,993,000/8 7T &
16,930,000 T (ZZE—NFE : D
AR=ZZT—IhE —T=_TF =%

B 2 R R T I8 B #820,042,000/% 7T
26,649,0007 7T ~ 24,306,000/ JT °
416,000 JT }233,993,000/ 7t) ° H A1
&5 18 A 4 PR HA 45 S o

27. R B R A

Number
of shares Share capital
HK$'000
RAEE RA
T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BIREE0.01E T2 LRk
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\E-A—-H"
31 December 2019 “E-N\F+ZA=t—-HRK
“E-hF+=-A=F—-H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid BORAR
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and R-_F-N\F—F—-A8"
31 December 2019 - \&+ZA=+—-8k
—WE+-A=+—-8H 789,211,046 7,892

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 30 May 2013 which is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last
condition to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by its

board of directors.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”) to
any eligible employee (including executive directors) and any
non-executive director of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”), any supplier of goods or services to
the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity, any consultant, adviser, manager, officer and
entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity, and any shareholder
or any member of the Group who has contributed to the business
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity (the
“Participant”), as incentives or rewards for their contributions or

potential contribution to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of adoption of the Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by its
shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and not yet exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed

30% of the issued shares of the Company from time to time.

EERZ HEERERATE

20195 3R

28. LR AR

e IR ERR MR

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE

R5

ARRUBRAEE Z2BRE
=t &l
ARAR-E-—ZFHEAZTARMT
—mﬁ%@%%ﬂ#%n'#a\:
—ZEXNAZAGIEIZ &%
frEmz BE) B+ FRBRE-T
“ZFARCAL BEADAERE
ABEXEEERZELERI -

AEEEEARRAMHAREFELR
B BERERMZARR REKEB ARG
((REEDSIAEEFER AR 2E
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BAZRTEMES2EARBEA(LA
EDROBERE (TBRED UARBA
DA 2 BAD VAR 2 B2 B 3K [ 4

FARBBRET 8 R AR R E A H A5 EIF] T
B ZBEBREMS R RN B - 715
BB MNTE A AR REBEITRG Z
10% ([T BIFEREE]) - BRIEARAAE
BRERBREAREG CHEE T EIEE
REE - R EF 2 EIREREE
BARFRHEEFEBARABEEITR
M210% - BE WL - BIFFFEI XA
] fr] L fth B2 AR 4 5 B4R L i 1 AR AT (R
ZEEBIREEITERA T RITALQA
ZEERHBE  TEBBABERRRTE
BE#ITRH 230% °



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

28.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

|

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which Options granted and may be granted to any Participant in
aggregate in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from its shareholders in
general meeting with such Participant and his/her associates (as

defined in the Listing rules) abstaining from voting.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period as the board of directors may in its absolute discretion
determine which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant and subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof and the board of directors may provide restrictions on
the exercise of an Option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant.

At 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 55,800,000 (2018: 65,600,000), representing 7.1%
(2018: 8.3%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

28. LR AR F &)

ARBURKER 2B RES

6D

EARRARRBRREBRAG E LML
(BEH2EENEBBA(ERER LHR
A BARERER)  BERTRARTHE
MEBSREZEERESR 2EETR
BFRTRNEBE  RBEEEERLAR
H(BERE)EN T —EAREARE
AP BEBEARBDHETRNODZ1% °

Rz BREAXNARE R HEF218
MER - ZWAFANUET - BRE
AIRRET B2 IGR  HEF SR ERE
MIEEE < MR ABERTE  HEEEH
MAGHEAHRERSEF;+F LA
X8l RBERIEGXREFTE AR
MZITEBBRERBIFARR - TEEH
ARAEFEE BB TER (ARF
ERE) (A2 ARONREHAHRZ
WHE: (NEERLARMAERSA
Betn 2 FHWTE - KA R BB R
HHHHZmEE -

R-ZE—Hn&E+=-A=+—8 BiE
EPEI B RITE 2 BRI R
iR 5 /55,800,000 (=& — N\ 4 :
65,600,0000%) * iE AR B R&Z B Z B
BITRDT. 1% (ZT—/\F :83%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

28.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the

Company (CONTINUED)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting date

Exercise period

28. LR AR F &)

ARABURAKERE 2B RES

Bl (®)

BREZEEBMNFBET

Exercise price

K HE# HERH T8 TEE
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
—E & —E “E—tFWNA-THBZE

mA=+mA mMA=+mAH - ZFMA=+=H 0.59% 7T
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TRIBPEABERQEENAFERBE

options held by eligible participants during the current and prior

years:

ERHEAATBRES 28

Outstanding
at 1 January

Outstanding

2018 and Lapsed at
31 December during 31 December
2018 the year 2019

R=-B-N\F

—A—Bk=
ZEZ-N\F+= R=ZB—h#&E
A=+-—-8 t=A=t-A
Categories of participants 2 HEEER i RATE FREX e
Directors o 19,100,000 (9,800,000) 9,300,000
Employees E8 46,500,000 — 46,500,000
65,600,000 (9,800,000) 55,800,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARATITE 55,800,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$)  hn#EFH 77 E (Bt) 0.59 0.59 0.59

BEREHSZERERAF]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

29.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme (subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month per employee), which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$5,324,000
(2018: HK$6,357,000) represents contributions payable to these

plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

9. RIRE AT &

AEBRMEEEAERERRILAG
MRERFE - &t B2 EERAEE
ZEENF UNEHAFE L hfE
FEAES c AEBEERERAFEHRAZ
5%uMZtEEHHRA (KR RERESR
# H1,500087T) - MEBFAEHRSE

TRZER -

puil

AEEPEMBARZEE DA RTEEK
FRERE 2B RKENFEIKE @ %F

MEBARARFMKAE TED LRAR
REMEAEHET  REMERES - &
SEPZRRBAGEIE—BEZ AT
THEHRE 2 5K

R ER 2 5 X 48 585,324,000
7T (ZZ — \ 4 : 6,357,000/ 7T) &5 &
S B IZEEARE L R R ETEE

R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

30. OPERATING LEASES 30. REHE
The Group as lessee TEBERERAA
2018
HK$'000
—E2-N\F
FHET
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBLELHEE N 2 HEBERTHK
operating leases during the year 41,883
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments AREBDR A HHESCEHE TRUT
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: EARR B R 2 R SR B AR AR & A A ) R O
2018
HK$'000
—E-N\F
FHET
Within one year —FR 40,454
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZELF (BEEENSF) 39,600
80,054
The Group as lessor AEBERBEEA
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed FTBERERERE ZMEEBRRK—Z
lessees for the next one to seven years. A AR A M A E
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: REERK  ZEREMNKLT :
2019
HK$'000
S L
FHET
Within one year —F R 1,541
In the second year F_F 1,541
In the third year F= 1,468
In the fourth year FF 1,025
In the fifth year ERF 803
After five years hF & 1,004
7,382
HEBSHEERERAT w67
20195 3R
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30. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

31.

The Group as lessor (CONTINUED)

The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future

minimum lease payments:

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

30. K&EHE ()

AEBEAEBEA®

AREEDEABEARNTARZERE
EERET#Y

2018
HK$'000
Y WY
FHET
Within one year —FR 1,871
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERAF (REEEMSE) 5,495
After five years hFi& 1,844
9,210
LITIGATION 31. 5F 74
The Group has no significant litigation outstanding at the end of RERR AEEWBEEGARTHEEKN
the reporting period. Details of the litigation during the prior year A e MEFERFDLFAFBHRINAT
are set out below.
On 27 December 2017, the Company and two independent RZE—tF+ZA=++tH  ARQA
third parties (the “Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the BMEBELE=7 ([EA)) I HhE
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally (MWl @ Rt NABE B RER

agreed to acquire or procure its nominee to acquire the entire
registered capital of a target group from the Vendors at a
consideration of RMB280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$334,300,000). The principal asset of the target group is the
resort property which is located in Guangdong Province, the PRC,
being an area with hot springs and forest in the proximity. The
resort property occupies a site area of about 5,000 mu, of which
980 mu are for residential use, 2,200 mu are for commercial use
and 1,820 mu are for amenities. An amount of RMB20,000,000,
being the first instalment of the consideration, was paid to the

Vendors in January 2018 in accordance with the Agreement.

BERENREEARBAKREBEE SN A
BEEZ2HIMER  RERAARE
280,000,0007T (48 % 17 #)334,300,000
BL) BEEREEEZFEEERMUNAT
BEREZEBRNYE KOARRE
TR o E RN P % 2 B E G K
5,0008} * & 9808 A{EE MR * 2,200

MARERR BA1,820(0 AFE %A
B-R-ZE—NF—A ZMEREZ
EREASNE—PREMNRBEAR

#20,000,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

31.LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

AN

On 27 April 2018, the Company completed submitting an
application to the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for
arbitration of the matter, seeking an arbitral award that, among
other things, (i) the Vendors to continue fulfilling the obligations
under the Agreement; (ii) the Vendors to cooperate with the
Company and provide all necessary documents and information
in order to complete the due diligence work pursuant to the
Agreement; (iii) the Vendors to cooperate with the Company
to complete all conditions precedent to the Agreement on or
before 30 October 2018; and (iv) the Vendors to pay the default
penalty under the Agreement and the legal costs incurred to the

Company.

On 27 April 2018, the Company was served an arbitration
application (which together with the arbitration application
lodged by the Company as set out above shall be referred
to as the “Arbitration Applications”) lodged by the Vendors
demanding (i) termination of the Agreement; and (ii) payment by
the Company for default penalty together with legal costs and

arbitration fee.

The details are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 December 2017, 22 January 2018, 15 February 2018, 9
March 2018, 28 March 2018 and 27 April 2018.

On 27 September 2018, the Company entered into settlement
agreement with the Vendors pursuant to which the Company and
the Vendors agreed to (i) terminate the Agreement; (ii) withdraw
the Arbitration Applications; (iii) bear respective legal costs and
arbitration fee; (iv) and the Vendors to refund the deposit of

RMB20,000,000 to the Company.

The deposit was refunded to the Company in full during the year

ended 31 December 2018.

EERZ HEERERATE

20195 3R
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RZF—\FMA=++A AQAE
SERRAEMFREESREIIMEERE
SREMHEL S SREE (BT BHE)
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider

the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of

2. EAREMmEL

AEBEAREREEBBERFEE
mfFH&ETE BRASEZER
ARELENRE T ARERGERKD
W AKEERBREEFFREAR -

AEEZEARBRERE MRS EE
HEURARREE ARGEEZ (B
BERITRARERE)

ARAREEFYLFRAEARRE - 5
HEPp—HOREFEREAKNARER
BAFMS 2 ER REEFZHERRZ

capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group HOASBEEeBRBRERE  BITHR
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of D BEROURETHERES A
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the BN EL T -
issue of new debt.
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33.&8@ T A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. EEITEEHR
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —F— )\¢
Financial assets SREE
FVTPL ERBREAFEENS
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL HEBBEBERAFEENE
— Held-for-trading —FHEER 189 7,068
Financial assets at amortised cost REERATEZESREE 1,860,229 1,902,817
1,860,418 1,909,885
Financial liabilities o= =
Amortised cost B SH R AR 65,400 18,312
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

KREERR

20195 3R

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, investments held for trading, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

Neither subsidiaries of the Company nor the Company
have significant foreign currency sales, purchases or
balances. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to foreign

currency risk is minimal.

HEERBRAT

3.2 T H )

b.

MEEEEEBFEREEK

AEENSRIABEES K
MR - HEEERE - R1T
‘BHREBAE  BHREMENERR
MEEEE R IEZHEBERNE
MM RE BZEeR T AR
MERBEMSERR (BE¥EEAR -
MERBREEBERRR)  FE
Bk MR E SRR - B REMARE
EzEFRRZBREN T - AL
EEREEEREREEZEZRER A
BRARBERARNTAEEE

B -

5 [ B

()  EEERE
i N7 = /NI == /NI B ]
BANNEREITEANE & L
BERGEH - B 5 H
AR 2 HNE R IR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

|

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (CONTINUED)
Market risk (CONTINUED)
(if)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate lease liabilities (see note 24 for
details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(see note 21 for details). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors interest rate

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

33. &/ T B ()
BEEREERB L

()

75 2 % ()

(i) F)FmB
2 Tl

2 RBUER

HESREERE

BRANDFEENXER (F

BB LMW E24)

EE;EIIJ/\/¥ 75N

BEemENERR
o AEEREIL &

BB EE21)

o AE B R
EHR A A

(F1EF2

RIT4

M REPBE AT A&

EEEEE

2R K@k

rate exposure should the need arises. BEEREZRHFEKAH
EE K o
Total interest income from financial assets that are BRE®ERAGFEZEREE
measured at amortised cost is as follows: FriS @B F B AT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hE —E-N\F
TET FHET
Other income Hag A
Financial assets at amortised cost H#EEKAFEZ S RMEE 7,623 3,975
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at WIBEBERERFEE

FVTPL: EveRmBEZMNERX
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hF —E-N\F
TET FAET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1ZEE K AAEZ SR A E 3,449 376
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

KREERR

20195 3R

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i) Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 25 basis points (2018: 25 basis points) increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank balances represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2018: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$961,000 (2018: decrease/increase by HK$522,000).
HEERBRATR

3.2 T H )
b. IREKREEEERKE

(&)

75 B R (%)
(i) FlEmpe (48)
BETE ST

AN E D TR B RS
HERKEZHNERBEE -
BEDNE  DERERES
HERSRTEZERIA
REFGRITE - FBRIT
B Z25EEZ (ZZ—N
F ;2518 FE B Z 1 a0 SOR
Do BB A R A Al
Rz eBE2e L 236G -

o A = 38T #2500 £ 2
(ZZ—\F : 25@EZ) -
mATA E &g
AlAEBBEE-_T—NF
+tZA=+—RALFEEZH
1815 & ) 21 H1961,00078
T (ZE—N\F @ 8
522,000 7T) °
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

|

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
management of the Group manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the

risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of respective instruments had been 10%
(2018: 10%) higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/
increase by HK$16,000 (2018: decrease/increase by
HK$590,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of

investments held for trading.

—NFFT-HA=t—BLFE

3.2 T A )
ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂﬁa = &K
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

4
j(/E_'. E‘“Eﬁ%‘&

20195 3R

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
bank balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated

with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are

summarised as below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
81% (2018: 62%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2019. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible

for determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

HEERERQF

n‘/-ﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

B R AR M

Z-NF+-A=+—BIFE
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

|

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. Trade receivables are grouped under a

provision matrix, grouped by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its hotel operations because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance

with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables based on
the provision matrix were not significant and thus no loss

allowance was recognised.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. The Group has taken legal action against the debtors

to recover the amount due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)
Other receivables

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and deposits were

insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks. For the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks
are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit

losses is provided.

AEBBRHBERERAT
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

|

b.

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

33. &/ T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and b. MEEKREEBEEREKEK
policies (CONTINUED) (&)
Liquidity risk B A % A [
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EENBHECRARE  AEEER
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed R#ERFHReRACEEEERE
adequate by the management to finance the Group's BEREBEZKE  AXREEHEZ
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BREES  WRERSRER
flows. TE o
The Group does not have any unutilised banking facilities REBRMEFEHDILEREA
for both years. ZIRITRE ©
The following table details the Group’s remaining THRFIAEEEHEBEERTE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has RDEEBER - TREBBEEHAEEZ
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of KRB RERELRAEE I g H
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the ZRBEEB T AAMEE -
Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. ZERPEFNERACRERE °
Liquidity table HEBEH XK
On
Weighted demand
average or Total
interest less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000
MEFH RERS *RAEE
bk 1MBAR 123A  3MERZEIE 1256 RELE REE
% TAT ThET TR TAT ThAT ThET
At 31 December 2019 R=B-A%E+=A
Er=[
Trade and other 25 REMERN
payables B - W - - - 0w 2247
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.63 3,488 6,975 31,39 2,809 44,666 43,153
25,735 6,975 31,394 2,809 66,913 65,400
At 31 December 2018 R=B-\E+=f
Er=Ig
Trade and other BoREMER
payables i - 18,312 - - - 18,312 18,312
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. &/ T )
c. Fair value measurements of financial ¢ ERMIBAZAFEEE

instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the

extent it is available.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019

AHBHREMS  AEEL SR
TADRAFEEFE - BEtAF
BER - ANEBE A A AHSE
RYE -

() AEEEERLFIEER
SEZAEE B EE
REBREHERE  ~5H
BoERMEERRAFEER
E-TREHRZFTTREE
RPEEZEELE(LER
PRz EERERB AR
®) -

R-ZE-hF+ZA=+-—

AzAYEEER

Level 1
HK$'000
£-R
FH&T

Financial asset at FVTPL EBRERRATLEER

STECERMEE
Investments held for trading BIEEERE

— listed equity securities — EIRAEFH 189

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018

R-ZBE-NF+ZA=+—-

HZzAFEEEBR

Level 1
HK$°000
Rl 1
FAT

Financial asset at FVTPL ERBEREATEE

ECEMEE
Investments held for trading BIEEBEKRE

— listed equity securities — ETRAE S 7,068

AEEBE H BERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #H £ — =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(CONTINUED)

Fair value as at
31 December 2018

Financial asset
31 December 2019

—hFE+ZA=+—HILFE

3.2 T H &)

C.

Fair value hierarchy

TRMIAZAFEEFE
(%)

() LAEHELEEATEE
HEZARESBEE
AT EE (R

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

SREE AVEE ATEERER HBEAEREEGAZE
“E-Af+t=-A=+-B ZE-/\F+tZA=1+—-H
Investments held Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
for trading in Hong Kong in Hong Kong an active market.
- HK$189,000 - HK$7,068,000
BHIEEEHRE BS EMRAE S BB EMRAE S — ERMZEANRE
— 189,000/ 1T —7,068,000/ 10
There were no transfers between the different levels of FARNFEEDTRER I E
the fair value hierarchy during the year. i o
Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) WHURERELT N FIEE
liabilities that are not measured at fair value FTEZ % /ﬁ?ﬁ/%&é\/ﬁﬂﬁ =4
on a recurring basis LR FEE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities cHMEENEREBBEZAFEE

is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

REBEBZEMNZEEEARLRR
MAREREDTEE °

ARABEERR  REAMBHRE
THREAZEHEERERAEGBL
FEEEAFEEAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

M BMEFHELEZEBYHER

TRHAVERMETHELEZAEB AR
28 SRR LFREH  ARE
ABELCZAENHERSRESKLIAR
ARERECERAEEZEARESN
EXNDBERBMERDREREZAB -

Other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
(note 24)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hitg & HEAE et
(H&E24)
FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—HA—H - - -
Financing cash outflows BERS M (376) = (376)
Interest expenses FMEFAE 376 = 376
At 31 December 2018 RIZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8 - _ _
Adjustment upon application RERBBMBREER
of HKFRS 16 F165R R A AR - 74,742 74,742
At 1 January 2019 R-Z—hFE—F—H - 74,742 74,742
Financing cash outflows AMER M = (40,913) (40,913)
New leases entered FREISI#hAEE - 5,892 5,892
Exchange adjustments PE 3, 58 & = (17) (17)
Interest expenses B X - 3,449 3,449
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF
+=ZA=+—8 - 43,153 43,153

REBRENEZEREBRLT
20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group did not enter into transactions with related parties for

both years.

There were no outstanding balances with related parties at the

end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company who are
considered as the key management personnel during the year is

set out in note 11.
The remuneration of key management personnel is determined

by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.

1 28—

35.

AEANLTRS

MRMEFE  AEEIWEEREA LT
ﬁ%lj °

<t

X

REMR - WEERE AL 2 HRAE

TEEBABZEHM
FRRRAEIEERABNAARAES
P& L NG E N

TREBEABNEMEARRFMESR
EREBBARRETSBBREE

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE —E— NEF+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 6. ARAEEME R RFIE
OF THE COMPANY
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the BEARBRERLERE AR EEZE MEE
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below. EEIZHBATHEBHRR X °
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ ownership interest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company and place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
BRITER/ ADRAFHZ
MEARER MR R EMER T R 2 LA TEERREE LY
HE k23
—B-fE =2 N\F —B-hE —T-N\F
% % % %
Allied Glory Hong Kong HK$2 - - 73.5 73.5  Investment holding
=1 B 28T REER
Apex Quality Group The British United States - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited (“Apex”) Virgin Islands dollars ("US$")
(the "BVI") 5,548,172
Apex Quality Group HEERRES 5,548,172 REZR
Limited ([ Apex) ((EB#EER EA(E )]
=1 ))
Benchmark Pacific Limited The BVI Us$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
Benchmark Pacific Limited EB#BRES (E BEER
HMH China Bermuda Canadian dollars - - 73.5 73.5  Investment holding
Investments Limited 1,152,913
HMH China BRE 1,152,913 REER
Investments Limited ik
Lucky Million The BVI US$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Lucky Million REARRES 1% REZER

Investments Limited

KBRS N ERBERAT -
20194 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

184

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid up issued/
registered capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

36. KA B EEME A AFE &)

Principal activities
and place of operation

Directly Indirectly
2018 2019 2018
% % %
BRTHE/ ARARHEZ
MEARER HEMAL B EMER FrE R A TEEBREXLY
GE:3
“T-\F  ZB-AE  —I)\F
% % %
Rosedale Hotel The BVI Us$1 - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Group Limited
HEEESEERAR HBARRHES (EH REZER
Rosedale Guangzhou? The PRC US$11,500,000 - 72.7 72.7  Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
BEMBE I E 11,500,000% 7T RAPEGER RS ERE
Rosedale Hotel The BVI US$1 100 - - Investment holding
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel REABRES (E REZERK
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong HK$2 = 89.4 89.4  Hotel management
Management Limited in Hong Kong
HBBEERERRA &R 2B REBBEER
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang The PRC RMB 168,000,000 - 84.9 84.9  Hotel ownership and
Company Limited* operation in the PRC
BEHBBERRARM FE AR¥ RAPEER REERE
168,000,0007T
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 89.4 89.4  Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited B 25T REBEEBE

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid up issued/
registered capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

36. AN A EEZMBRAFE @

Principal activities
and place of operation

Directly Indirectly
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
BRTHME/ ADRAFEZ
g RS HEMARY B E3LE-E = T t:1:47] TEEBREE LY
HE [5F:3
—Z-NEF —E-N\F —Z-NF —ZT-)\F
% % % %
Shenyang Hotel The BVI Us$100 - - 84.9 84.9  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
KHBEERHAERDR ZEBEBRES 100% 7T REER
Shenyang Limited The BVI us$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Shenyang Limited RERBRHE (E REER
Success Billion Limited The BVI US$1 - - 100 100  Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited RERRRES 1% REBEEEH
The Rosedale Luxury The PRC US$20,000,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Hotel & Suites Ltd.* in the PRC
NBEX (L) I 20,000,000% 7T RAPBEYERE
BRAEH

i This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture.
Pursuant to the Co-operative Agreement, upon the end of
the co-operative period, the rights and ownership of Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel will be transferred to the PRC Partner, and
the remaining net assets are to be distributed to Allied Glory
and the PRC Partner in the ratio of 80% and 20% respectively.

#  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

AEBBRHBERERAT

20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

36.

18 AN

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

36. KA B EEME A AFE &)

EERRERMIIADRB ZME QRS
AEBEZEXEREEREATE -BEF
RRAIEMBRARZFBEECRIE
BRITE °

FR > BEEMNERRBEITEAER

S 3
g ©
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

MEARZHE
TRBIIHE EANFERES
= G] POk

Proportion of

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

36. KRR B EEME QN AFE &)

BREAFERERZHZE

AEH

Principal ownership interests and
Place of place of voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FEREREEZRERRE
. P ERALBY ITEENY RRZELE ARZFERER 2 (BR) BA i ERESR
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-hF 2N\ ZE-nE —E-N\E ZE2-nE ZE-N\E
TR FHL TER FiHT
Apex and its subsidiaries The BVI Hong Kong
and the PRC 10.6% 10.6% (14,982) 5,841 191,198 206,713
ApexREH B A EREBRHE  AARTE
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (479) (1,633) (16,678) (16,110)
EEFERER 2B
FEANEAT
(15,461) 4,208 174,520 190,603

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BERENEERERLT
20195 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. KRR B EEME D AFE &)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEARFEERETEZIEZE
that have material non-controlling interests BN EZFE @
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries Apex R 1B 1 7]
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-h%F et BYIES
FER FET
Current assets mENE E 1,344,331 1,349,964
Non-current assets SEMEN B E 276,298 306,681
Current liabilities mENB & (76,626) (60,846)
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE (32,557) (34,906)
Equity attributable to owners of ZN/NCIE Y F N e
the Company 1,320,248 1,354,180
Non-controlling interests of Apex ApexIETE Ik 1 2 156,540 160,563
Non-controlling interests of Apex’s ApexHi 8B A &)z FEE R E R
subsidiaries 34,658 46,150
4 - GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
1 88__ Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. K AR EEME QTS &)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEEREERERZHERE
that have material non-controlling interests MEARZ&FE @)
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex K E [ & 22 7] (#)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

HK$"000 HK$/000
BHE-Z2-h& #HE-ZTN\HF
t=A=+t-8 +-A=+—"H

IHFEE IEFE
FHERT FHET

Revenue A 185,738 232,477
Interest income and other income B WA R H A 24,551 22,493
Expenses il (260,179) (184,632)
(Loss) profit for the year AEEZ (E1E) m A (49,890) 70,338
(Loss) profit attributable to owners RRAEEE NS (BE) &

of the Company (34,908) 64,497
(Loss) profit attributable to non-controlling Apex3E 12 B& # %5 fE 15 (& 18) % A

interests of Apex (4,139) 7,647
Loss attributable to non-controlling Apexffi 8 2 7] 2 FE1E A%

interests of Apex's subsidiaries T 2= FE G S 18 (10,843) (1,806)
(Loss) profit for the year AEEF (E1E) mH (49,890) 70,338
Other comprehensive expense attributable ARG #HHE AEEE M2

to owners of the Company X (4,455) (13,389)
Other comprehensive expense attributable Apex3EiE A% # x5 fE(E b 2 M

to non-controlling interests of Apex sz (528) (1,587)
Other comprehensive expense attributable ApexBt B A 7 7 JE#5 A% 4 25 FE L

to non-controlling interests of Apex’'s Efh2mEAX

subsidiaries (649) (2,004)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 74 & H i & [ B 52 (5.632) (16,980)

HERS HEERERAD —
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

1 9 um—

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(CONTINUED)

Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED)

36. KA B EEME A AFE &)

BREEARFEREZZHZE
= NG RE )

Apex R B [11 B 2 7] (%)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-hE HE_ZT-NF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-"
IHFEE IEFE
FHET FET
Total comprehensive (expense) income RARHEAEAERMGZE (AX) K
attributable to owners of the Company 1A =8 (39,363) 51,108
Total comprehensive (expense) income ApexIEIE R B E2E () K
attributable to non-controlling interests ~ zx42%8
of Apex (4,667) 6,060
Total comprehensive expense attributable  Apexff /8 2 &) 2 JE 5 i% # &= f&
to non-controlling interests of Apex's AR EE
subsidiaries (11,492) (3,810)
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEEL2E(FX) BB
for the year (55,522) 53,358
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [AlApex3E 12 B # %5 F 1+ A% &
of Apex - =
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating &% EFEH RS ORH) RAFE
activities (1,358) 12,234
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing & ESZIREFRA GRl) FE
activities 450 (130)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BRE EE) 2R & 7 H/F58 (40,038) -
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORL) mAHRE (40,946) 12,104

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 = —

37.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The pandemic of coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"), which has
led to a substantial travel restriction and lockdowns across the
PRC, and many countries have drastically reduced or even closed
air traffic with the PRC, will particularly deliver a hard hit to the
hotel sector, with occupancy rates of hotels in some districts
dropping severely. As a dramatic slowdown in travel to Hong
Kong, the number of arrivals in Hong Kong have plummeted in
the first quarter of 2020, following the government’s suspension

of certain services to contain the COVID-19 pandemic.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances as the hotel
sector will stay weak, the revenue of the Group will continue
to be impacted during a period when the Group is taking strict
precautionary measures to ensure the health and safety of its
employees, and supporting the steps taken by the government
to control the further spread of COVID-19, some of the Group's
hotels in the PRC which have witnessed significantly lowered
occupancies in the first quarter of 2020 amid the lockdowns
imposed by the government of the PRC. However, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the widespread occurrence
of COVID-19 should not cause long-term damage to the Group's
hotel sector but will inevitably be a short-term impact to the

Group's performance and prospects in the first half of 2020.

REBEEZHEERERAT
20195 3R
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37. #& HHIB =18

FAEMRES (TCOVID-19]) BEE &
B B 2 B B R ) R 0% R 6l R 1= T
BFZBEREARAEBRALEZBRAAR
HROB A AR R B B IR 2 B R
EE BoMENEEATEKRE
T -BEBRNEESE RSB
COVID-19%& 15 - B IRBEAHENR T =
TFE-—FEREB T -

ERREBERNBREMNE  BETER
BB ST A S UL ES 0 A SR B ER
BEEREEABREEENRERE
2 X BT A EHICOVID-19# —
S EFE A AT e B S A X B &
Z -XPERNEENEISHNTE
AEBURFENBSBEL-_T=-F
FEFAEEKRIEBTE - A - AAA
EERA COVD-19MEZRHETEYH
AEENBEXBERRERES  BE
AEEeHAEERN_S_TSF L¥F
MEBRAIREKERATZE

|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HIZE =T —NF+_A=+T—HILFE

38.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

38. AN 01X A Z B HE AR O #R AR A

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY &
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-n% —T-N\F
FExT FAT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =Yg 175 292
Right-of-use assets FREEE 3,300 =
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRAR ZKE 239,764 239,764
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NN RS 1,348,102 1,265,757
1,591,341 1,505,813
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H e YR BR 3X R TR A 3R0E 1,744 1,620
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U Bt /B A B 5RIE 509,836 516,679
Investments held for trading BIEEERE - 4,477
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 208 347
511,788 523,123
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 MEH BRI 5,439 5,356
Lease liabilities HESE 1,333 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BT B A R RRIE 471,522 457,228
478,294 462,584
Net current assets RBEEFE 33,494 60,539
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 1,624,835 1,566,352
Non-current liability FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,020 =
Net assets EEFE 1,622,815 1,566,352
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital [N 7,892 7,892
Reserves & &5 1,614,923 1,558,460
Total equity EEEE 1,622,815 1,566,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIZE =T —NEF T _A=1T—HILEFE

38.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Movement in reserves

& @
HERD

Share-based

38. AN 1 | 2 B FS AR R #R AR I A

HE

Share Special payments  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE BRRE  URRREE 2R ag
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\5-A—8 1,360,752 658,303 13,715 (532,471) 1,500,299
Profit and total comprehensive income AR E i F| &
for the year 2ENGAHE - - - 58,161 58,161
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF—-\F+=-A=1+—H 1,360,752 658,303 13,715 (474,310) 1,558,460
Profit and total comprehensive income  AEEEF| &
for the year PENHEE - - - 56,463 56,463
Lapse of share options BRELRY - - (2,107) 2,107 =
Reduction in share premium BRI E (1,360,752) 1,360,752 = = =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+ZRA=+—-H - 2,019,055 11,608 (415,740) 1,614,923
rE N BERARAT W93
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Financial Summary

B TEEER

RESULTS E 45
Year ended 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE+t-A=+-BLFE
—E-AE =ZZ=-N\F ZE—tF ZZET—R"F ZZT—hHF
FHET FET FHT FET FHET
Revenue WA 215,376 263,011 252,311 242,296 235,412
Loss before tax Br BRI & 18 (109,498) (65,765)  (127,806) (92,529) (119,811)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisfi (A e (1,398) 66,188 2,558 (665) (1,568)
(Loss) profit for the year REZ (E18) A (110,896) 423 (125,248)  (93,194) (121,379)
(Loss) profit for the year THALTEEREFEE
attributable to: (E518) & A -
Owners of the Company KRARER A (95,435) (3,785) (116,128) (86,438)  (105,098)
Non-controlling interests IR A (15,461) 4,208 (9,120) (6,756) (16,281)
(110,896) 423 (125,248) (93,194) (121,379)
> ==
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
At 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R+=—A=+-—8~H
—E-NF —E-N\F —F—+tF —E—RF —ZT—hF
F#T FHT FHT FET FHT
Total assets BERE 2,291,370 2,391,042 2,474,092 2,535,010 2,678,164
Total liabilities BEBT 193,378 176,111 226,217 228,487 230,521
2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875 2,306,523 2,447,643
Equity attributable to owners ~ ANQ A #EE A
of the Company el HE= 1,923,472 2,024,328 2,056,219 2,114,005 2,246,592
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR A 174,520 190,603 191,656 192,518 201,051
2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875 2,306,523 2,447,643
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Particulars of Properties

/e

HOTEL PROPERTIES B & ¥ 5=
Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest
AT ity 3k B ® it 28 R HMER EREIL
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Hotel operation 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.7%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou sq.m. sg.m.
No. 348
Jiang Nan Da Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC
BMABEEGR AR BN 30 R I EEBIEETS  10,838.88  46,865.83 72.7%
B E M T 75K 75K
B E
TR A B H 3485
Luoyang Golden Gulf Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Hotel operation 9,025.51 21,269.18 60.0%
Hotel Company Limited No. 319 Zhongzhou sg.m. sg.m.
Zhong Road,
Xigong District,
Luoyang City,
Henan Province, the PRC
BEESKERBEERAR  BEEKERBE MEBEXER 9,025.51  21,269.18 60.0%
BT R K AR
5T
[rip '
A AR EE3195%
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
BSIBBEGR A A &5 IR IR EAEER 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
H AR AR
BEEA
ES ™
& A &
b ¥k B& 9955%
REBRE HEZRBR AT =

20195 3R
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
AT 4k REAR HE
The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Leased out Leasehold with a term expiring on
Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District, 15 October 2023
Shanghai, the PRC
HEEX(LB)BRAR R EET A HERE HEPRZZE_=%T1A

X 1L #&19005%

+HBER
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GREATER BAY AREA
DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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www.gbadynamic.com
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